Agenda - External Affairs and Additional Legislation

Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:

Committee Room 2 - Senedd Rhys Morgan

Meeting date: 24 September 2018 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 14.00 0300 200 6565
SeneddEAAL@assembly.wales

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

2.1

2.2

interest
(14.00)

Papers to note
(14.00-14.10)
Correspondence from Dr Richard Greville, Association of the British
Pharmaceutical Industry regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh
Government is preparing for Brexit — health and medicines - 15 August 2018
(Pages 1 - 3)
Correspondence from Adrian Greason-Walker, Wales Tourism Alliance
regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing
for Brexit — ports — 30 August 2018
(Pages 4 - 7)
Correspondence from Tina Donnelly, Royal College of Nursing Wales
regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing
for Brexit - health and medicines - 31 August 2018
(Pages 8 - 32)
Correspondence from Nesta Lloyd-Jones, Welsh NHS Confederation regarding
the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit
- health and medicines - 3 September 2018
(Pages 33 - 50)

,Ff Cynulliad National
/’ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



2.5

2.6

2.7

Correspondence from Robin Smith, Rail Freight Group regarding the follow-
up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit — ports - 4
September 2018

(Pages 51 - 52)
Correspondence from Anna Malloy, Port of Milford Haven regarding the
follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit -
ports — 7 September 2018

(Pages 53 - 57)
Correspondence from Liam Anstey, BMA Cymru Wales regarding the follow-
up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit — health
and medicines - 7 September 2018

(Pages 58 - 60)

Motion under Standing Order 17.42(vi) to resolve to exclude the

public from the remainder of the meeting
(14.10)

How is the Welsh Government preparing for Brexit? -

consideration of the responses received
(14.10-14.30) (Pages 61 - 68)

Wales in the World: an inquiry into the Welsh Government’s
approach to external affairs - rapporteur summary

(14.30-14.50) (Pages 69 - 80)
Wales in the World: an inquiry into the Welsh Government’s
approach to external affairs - consideration of draft letter

(14.50-15.10) (Pages 81 - 84)

Forward work programme
(15.10-15.30) (Pages 85 - 93)



ABPI Cymru Wales Ag en d a I t?.m .2 . 1
Floor 4, 2 Caspian Point, Pierhead Street, Cardiff CF10 4DQ L&
<

+44 (0)29 2045 4297
Bringing medicines to life

wales@abpi.org.uk
Dod a meddyginiaeth i fywyd

Cymru | Wales

David Rees AM

Chair of the External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Pierhead Street

Cardiff, CF99 1NA

15 August 2018

Dear N\(’\ Q{-;gg
4

Thank you for the opportunity to comment further on Wales’ preparedness for exiting the
European Union in relation to medicines. As you noted in your letter, this is done amid
ongoing negotiation between the UK Government and the European Union (EU), and the
continued uncertainty about the eventual outcome. Any comment below should be seen in
this light.

You have particularly requested our views on:

e the preparedness of the healthcare and medicines sector in Wales for the UK’s
departure from the EU;

e how the Welsh Government is leading efforts to prepare the Welsh healthcare and
medicines sector for the UK’s departure from EU, including contingency planning for
a ‘no deal’; and

e any other issues you would wish to bring to the attention of the External Affairs
Committee.

We have outlined these below, under your headings. | hope that this is useful.

The Association of the British Pharmaceutical Industry (ABPI) represents innovative
research-based biopharmaceutical companies, large, medium and small, leading an exciting
new era of biosciences in the UK. Our industry, a major contributor to the economy of the
UK, brings life-saving and life-enhancing medicines to patients. We represent companies
who supply more than 80% of all branded medicines used by the NHS and who are
researching and developing the majority of the current medicines pipeline, ensuring that the
UK remains at the forefront of helping patients prevent and overcome disease.

Pack Page 1

The Association of the British Pharmaceutical Industry | +44 (0)20 7930 3477 getintouch@abpi.org.uk
A company limited by guarantee registered in England & Wales number 09826787 | Registered office 7th Floor, Southside, 105 Victoria Street, London SW1E 6QT



€

,7.
3

Preparedness of the healthcare and medicines sector in Wales for the UK’s departure
from the EU

Since the day of the referendum result, the ABPI has been working with companies to
understand the impact of the UK leaving the EU on the supply of medicines to patients. The
priority for the pharmaceutical industry is to make sure patients across the whole of the UK
and the EU experience no disruption to getting the medicines they need. Every month, 45
million patient packs of medicine move from the UK to the EU27, with 37 million packs
moving in the other direction’.

The ABPI has been supporting companies to make all necessary preparations and have
advised companies to prepare for all possible outcomes from the Article 50 negotiations,
including the UK leaving the UK without a deal from March 2019. This includes underlining
the importance of evaluating supply lines for individual products, particularly for products
with complex supply lines and those with temperature control requirements, short shelf lives.

Each company is preparing in the best way possible that reflects their individual
circumstances. For some companies, this means duplicating processes in both the UK and
the EU to ensure that medicines can be made available in both the EU and the UK.

The ABPI has also been taking an approach of working closely with the UK Government,
through both the UK EU Life Sciences Steering Group, and specific working groups on
medicine supply, to prepare for the UK’s exit from the European Union.

We have also carried out specific activity in Wales, working closely with our members and
colleagues across the sector. This has included providing updates on discussions at a UK-
level, when this has been appropriate. We have proactively participated in the Welsh NHS
Confederation Policy Forum Brexit Sub- Group WhICh provided a briefing to Assembly
Members |n July 2018 (avallable from: https:/ hsconfed.org/media-

O N-1 "::_\,1,':; SN-Nes =) 1-S0CI3

~rAara_cyvetam
10aCl-0 lal-Care-sysie ).

The ABPI’s position continues to be that regulatory cooperation is essential in order to
ensure that UK and EU patients have access to medicines and clinical research, and that the
UK remains a leading force in life sciences. This is the best way to ensure that patients in
the UK and Wales are able to continue to access the medicines they need after the UK’s exit
from the EU.

How Welsh Government is leading efforts to prepare the Welsh healthcare and
medicines sector for the UK’s departure from EU, including contingency planning for
a ‘no deal’

ABPI Cymru Wales has met with the Welsh Government Health Department to discuss the
issues facing the pharmaceutical industry as a result of the UK’s departure from the EU. Our
discussions included a very short discussion on supply chain issues - the outcome of which
was that this was an issue that would need to be handled on a pan-UK basis, and covered a
range of subjects that have the potential to adversely affect the work of our members.

We would encourage the Welsh Government to reach out to the UK Government’s
Department for Health and Social Care (DHSC) and the other Devolved Administrations, so

" EFPIA Brexit Survey, https://lwww.efpia.eu/media/288531/brexit-survey-outcome-08112017.pdf
Pack Page 2



that contingency planning and delivery for the continued supply of medicines across the UK
is co-ordinated and aligned.

Any other issues you would wish to bring to the attention of the External Affairs
Committee

The draft Withdrawal Agreement sets out the terms of the implementation period that will
operate between March 2019 and December 20202. Agreement on the terms of the
implementation period is dependent on agreement between the UK and EU on the overall
Withdrawal Agreement. The terms of the draft Agreement indicate that the UK would have a
very limited role in the European Medicines Agency (EMA) during the implementation period.

Article 123 indicates that ‘the UK shall not act as leading authority for risk assessments,
examinations, approvals and authorisations at the level of the Union’ and that the UK may
only ‘upon invitation, exceptionally attend meetings or parts of meetings or the committees’
in the event that a number of conditions are fulfilled.

The ABPI are seeking for a future relationship between the UK and the EU which is based
on closer collaboration than that described in the draft Withdrawal Agreement. It is essential
that the future relationship between the UK and the EU regarding medicines regulation is
closer than that described for the implementation period.

| hope that the above is useful. Please do not hesitate to contact me if | can provide any
further information or clarification.

Best Regardg\ I\ ~

Dr Richard Greville
ABPI Director Wales and Supply Chain

2 Draft Agreement on the withdrawal of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland from
the European Union and the European Atomic Energy Community,
https://ec.europa.eu/commission/sites/beta-political/files/draft_agreement_coloured.pdf

Pack Page 3



Agenda Item 2.2

\ Wales
Tourism

v' Alliance
Cynghrair
Twristiaeth
Cymru

Wales Tourism Alliance
Consultation Response

‘Inquiry into the implications of Brexit for Welsh and Irish ports
additional questions’

Response to:

External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee:
The National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff
CF99 1NA

Company No: 4449548

30/08/2018

Pack Page 4



1. The Wales Tourism Alliance

The Wales Tourism Alliance (WTA) is the recognised over-arching representative
organisation for the tourism industry in Wales, liaising with and coordinating the
views of all concerned and informing and working with Government at Westminster,
Cardiff and at Local Authority levels.

The WTA also acts as an intermediary between Government and all involved in
tourism, disseminating information to the industry via our member organisations and
we work with colleagues in organisations in other parts of the UK.

The membership of the WTA includes sectoral, national, regional and local
representative bodies comprising accommaodation (hotels, guest houses, bed and
breakfast establishments, holiday home parks, touring caravan and camping sites,
hostels and self-catering cottages), attractions, activities, training and skills, tourism
guides and transport.

The Wales Tourism Alliance is a pan-Wales umbrella group with member
organisations resting within its general membership. This amounts to around 6000
working operators and means WTA contacts and representatives are now found in
every part of Wales. A full list of our current members can be found at
www.wta.org.uk

The WTA therefore works with and on behalf of operators ranging from major
players to the micro-businesses that make up so much of the tourism industry.

2. WTA Response to the External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee:
inquiry into the implications of Brexit for Welsh and Irish ports additional
guestions

-the preparedness of Welsh ports for the UK’s departure from the EU and any
observations you may have on the current state of play (when compared with
the time of the Committee’s original report publication);

Firstly, we have a great deal of concern in relation to the debate in and between
Gouvt. that there is now a high chance of a no deal Brexit scenario. There are obvious
negative implications for Wales particularly given our location and the likely priority
we will be given in the UK. The current situation is shaping up to be the ‘perfect
storm’.

The ‘24 No Deal Brexit Papers’ for the main part are not tourism or indeed port
related. Granted there are a number of papers that have tourism-related implications.
These include Trading with the EU, but it is not inspiring reading.

We are concerned that there is now not enough time available for detailed analysis
and planning and that there has been little or no reassurance from Welsh
Government as to the negotiation/discussions going on with Westminster. The Welsh
Government appears to be in a ‘passive aggressive’ mode with Westminster taking a
‘not of our making stance’. This may not be the case of course and we hope it is not,
but there needs to be a more open transparent demonstration as to the negotiations
that are, perhaps, taking place? If indeed there is actually little or no negotiation
going on, this is worrying, it may serve well in the party political world, but in actuality
the voter will seek to punish politicians, of whatever party, if Brexit damages the

Pack Page 5


http://www.wta.org.uk/

Welsh economy and it is found that negotiation was not occurring to at least minimize
impact. We would like re-assurance that this is not the case?

One large area of concern out of many is the Irish market. It is one of our most
important markets for inbound tourism. Incidentally, overseas spend is 17% down,
2017 figures over 2016. The Irish border question has in no way been resolved,
again there appears to be no real moves to solve this question either from
Westminster; Cardiff or indeed Brussels.

At the time of writing, (August 30", 2018) we don’t believe Wales is at all prepared.
There has been a singular lack on information and direction given by WG, which we
believe has caused much widespread frustration.

- the proposals for new UK-EU customs arrangements;

What proposals? A no deal, hard border option would be the worst possible option.
Seamless travel - “no change, no delays, no inconvenience" is the best and preferred
option. However, again the lack of information about customs arrangements is giving
rise to conjecture. It would be helpful, particularly in terms of WG demonstrating
some form of leadership, to disseminate information to transport operators through
the provision of updates/ bulletins etc. Action is needed to allay fears and to

provide reassurance.

We reiterate, the Customs Union and the European Travel Information and
Authorisation System (ETIAS) pose risks for Welsh Ports and the tourism industry
across Wales. It is not clear as to how the cruise ship market could be affected.
Currently customs procedures are carried out at the cruise ship's first port of call (for
example Southampton) with no further need for checks for ships undertaking "Round
UK" tours. If border policies change, then additional checks will be needed with
subsequent resource implications for all UK ports.

Again we continue to have an over-riding concern the lack of time available for
detailed analysis of the issues and the negotiations that are required. These issues
are complex and will require a great deal of examination and agreement between the
UK and the EU. The resource implications are daunting. A tight detailed timetable
needs to be agreed and qualified, experienced personnel need to be in place. The
industry needs the re-assurance that Government can deliver.

- how the Welsh Government is leading efforts to prepare Welsh ports for the
UK’s departure from the EU, including contingency planning.

We continue to have concerns about Border Control, the recommendation we
previously made about "Wales taking the lead" does not seem to have been acted
upon. No action that we are aware of has been taken. It would seem that no lead has
been given.

In Fishguard for example, no action or communication has been received from
Cardiff. The WTA spoke with representatives from the port of Fishguard, who would
appreciate clarification from Welsh Government on planning arrangements made to
cover all possible negotiated outcomes. A comment was made that WG has NOT
been in contact with the port and neither has the local authority, whose services may
also be affected by new measures introduced at the port.

It is also unclear as to whether the Welsh Government has consulted with local
authorities on the issue?

Pack Page 6



- any other issues that you would wish to bring to the attention of the External
Affairs Committee.

In terms of tourism it has to be said that all Welsh ports differ. Again by example
Fishguard has a far greater dependency upon tourist visitors than Holyhead. In
respect of this particular consultation, it might be helpful to suggest classifying all
ports in terms of usage and function and then carry out individual impact
assessments -or action plans.

Tourists are already asking questions about travel arrangements for next year.
People do book holidays in advance! Without any meaningful information available, it
is not being alarmist to conclude that passenger volumes may fall which will impact
upon all industry sectors. We could still maximise the exchange rate boost. In our
2017 Consultation Response we had anticipated there would be a boost overseas
visitors to Wales, sadly the forecast made in light of the most recent IPS figures for
last year has shown it actually reversed in terms of spending 17% down on the
previous year. This heightens our concern that more has to be done in terms of
investment and the need for Welsh Government to ensure, as a matter of priority,
that arrangements at Welsh ports are in place to enable visitors and trade to flow
freely.

Currently foot passengers can simply turn up to a ferry port, buy a ticket and depart
with no need to produce a passport. Although this segment is relatively small, it is
significant. Border checks or the tightening of borders may impact upon the
spontaneity of travel movements, which would be regretful.

Future Involvement of the Tourism Industry in Wales in This Process
We would like to be part of any future consultation affecting policy on this important

issue as it is certain that such future and further activity will impact on the tourism
industry and the tourism/visitor economy in general.

Adrian Greason-Walker
Wales Tourism Alliance
30" August 2018

Pack Page 7



ltem 2.3

COIeg NyrSiO BrenhinOl Royal College of Nursing
Cvmru Ty Maeth _

)4 : King George V Drive East
Royal College of Nursing Cardiff
Wales CF14 4Xz

Tina Donnelly CBE, TD, DL, FRCN,
CCMI, MSc (ECON), BSc (Hons),
RGN, RM, RNT, RCNT, Dip N, PGCE
Director, RCN Wales

Telephone 0345 772 6100
Fax 029 20680750
Email tina.donnelly@rcn.org.uk

31 August 2018

David Rees AM

Chair of the External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee
Ty Hywel

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

Dear David

RE: Follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit —
health and medicines

Thank you for your letter and invitation to respond to your Committee’s follow-up inquiry
into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit. This is a vitally important issue
and we are very pleased that the Committee is looking at it in detail. We outline our
response to the specific areas of interest to you below.

The preparedness of the healthcare and medicines sector in Wales for the UK’s
departure from the EU

On 10" July the Royal College of Nursing Wales held a seminar to discuss the
implications of Brexit on the health and social care sectors. This was attended by a
number of professional bodies and other trade unions and provided an excellent
opportunity to discuss in detail the issues and concerns for the sector. As such, whilst
as the Royal College of Nursing we do not represent the entire healthcare and
medicines sector and cannot speak for it, we are able to provide an overview of the
discussions which we have had with colleagues from across the sector. We are also
attaching the follow-up report which we produced following the event on 10™" July and
this can be found attached.

A central theme to all areas of concern is uncertainty, and the fact that the full
implications and risks posed by Brexit are, to a certain extent, an unknown quantity.
This makes it difficult to predict or plan for the future. Until the full implications of Britain
leaving the European Union are fully understood, there will be uncertainty around

Pack Page 8



issues such as workforce supply, workers’ rights terms and conditions, research
funding and collaboration and reciprocal healthcare arrangements. It is essential
therefore that the Welsh Government commissions research and engages with experts
in order to help mitigate this uncertainty, and enabling an informed assessment of
possible risks.

Furthermore, throughout this period of uncertainty it is vital that quality of care is
maintained and that nurses and health care workers from the EU who are working
across the UK continue to feel valued. We know that there has been a decline across
the UK in the number of nurses from the European Economic Area (EEA) joining the
UK workforce, whilst at the same time there has also been a significant number of staff
from the EEA who have left the Nursing & Midwifery Council (NMC) Register in order
to return to their home country.

How the Welsh Government is leading efforts to prepare the Welsh healthcare
and medicines sector for the UK’s departure from the EU, including contingency
planning for a ‘no deal’

The Royal College of Nursing Wales have held a number of meetings with Welsh
Government officials regarding Brexit which have provided opportunities to be updated
on the efforts of Welsh Government in preparing for Brexit. We are reassured that work
is being undertaken in many of the key areas of health and social care, and that a
certain amount of contingency planning for a possible ‘no deal’ scenario is being
conducted. We remain concerned however that this work is relatively early on in its
development and that sufficient time to work through all of the detail may be running
out.

The UK Government has recently published a number of technical papers setting out
information to help prepare for the event of a ‘no deal’, a number of which are related
to health and medicine. We hope the Welsh Government is working closely with the
UK Government on the detail of this guidance notes, particularly in relation to vital
areas such as the supply of medicines.

With only a matter of weeks left before the UK Government is expected to have a deal
on the table, there are a number of significant unknowns and areas of uncertainty which
must be clarified. For instance, there were a number of questions which were raised
during discussions at our event in July and included in our final report, and these are
directed at both Welsh Government and UK Government. These questions are:

1. What plans does the UK Government have to update the EU/EEA agreement to
ensure that nurses from the EEA looking to revalidate post-Brexit are able to do
s0?

Currently all nurses who are on the Nursing and Midwifery Council register have to
re-register every three years through a process known as revalidation. Post Brexit
if there is no clear EU/EEA agreement in place then potentially those nurses who
are currently on the register and looking to revalidate may not be able to do so
under the Nursing and Midwifery Order 2001.

Pack Page 9



2.

Is the Welsh Government planning new guidance for the NHS on data sharing and
access to the relevant international electronic systems in relation to public health
protection?

Central to the control of infectious diseases is data protection and data sharing.
Without rules underpinning the EU system of data sharing, it is unclear how
necessary data will be shared and accessed. It is thought that this could even lead
to reintroducing a system of quarantine in order to control the spread of disease.
The centre for disease control is based in Stockholm but, under data protection
legislation, they would not be able to share their data legally with the UK once is
outside of the EU. The UK must retain the ability to contribute to, and compare,
surveillance data to ensure health systems can deal with cross-border health
threats e.g. infectious diseases and the threat of antimicrobial resistance and have
robust protection arrangements.

Has the Welsh Government completed an assessment of risk to the continued and
uninterrupted supply of medicines, medical radioisotopes, vaccines, equipment,
devices and other supplies?

After Brexit the UK may find it more difficult to access medicines and medical
devices if we choose to create new frameworks which are different from EU
regulations. This may cause delays in new drugs being made available for patients,
with the potential to cause significant harm. Ensuring timely access to medicine is
critical for all patients in the UK. The UK Government should also agree mutual
recognition of the CE mark between the UK and the EU. The CE mark indicates
compliance with EU health and safety standards and allows for free movement of
products.

Similarly, there are serious concerns within the health arena in relation to
radioisotopes and their movement (currently governed by Euratom). Radioisotopes
are highly valuable in medicine, and are widely used in the diagnosis and treatment
of disease. Not surprisingly, there are tight regulations surrounding the
transportation and importation of radioactive materials. Radioisotopes also have a
very short half-life and rapid decay meaning there cannot be any delays in the
products reaching patients if they are to be effective. Plans need to be put in place
now to ensure that the supply of these resources is not interrupted.

What are the arrangements for implementing the Falsified Medicines Directive and
what will happen after March 20197

the Falsified Medicines Directive which is due to be rolled out across EU member
states from 9 February 2019. The Directive aims to address the significant problems
and threats caused by fake medicines. Under the Directive, all new packs of
prescription medicines put on the market from February 2019 will need to be
booked onto a European Medicines Verification System (EMVS) and will have to
have two safety features: a unique identifier and an anti-tampering device. Health

Pack Page 10



professionals will be required to scan medicines prior to administering them and
that would then record them as decommissioned from EMVS. IT systems will have
to register with SecureMed which is setting up 13 national hubs, and the equipment
to scan medicines will need to be available in all GP practices, pharmacies and
hospitals.

There are clearly significant logistical and financial implications for complying with
this Directive, and there is a complete lack of clarity over what work is currently
underway to prepare for being compliant, or what alternative measures will be put
in place after Brexit to ensure the UK is still safeguarded against false medicines.

What scenario-planning is the Welsh Government doing in case of a ‘no deal’?

Although this is a question which is being posed to stakeholders as part of your
Committee’s inquiry, this is an area which we would also value more information,
and we would be grateful for any detail the Committee is able to gather and share
with stakeholders in this area. Through our meetings with Welsh Government
officials we know that some work is being undertaken by Welsh Government in
relation to a ‘no deal’ and this is certainly very welcome. However, what this work
entails, or the Welsh Government’s official line in terms of what a ‘no deal’ would
mean for Wales is not clear. Considering the increasing amount of consensus that
a ‘no deal’ is a distinct possibility, more information should be in the public domain
about what scenario-planning the Welsh Government is conducting.

In addition to the above questions, our report also makes a number of
recommendations for the Welsh and UK Governments:

1.

The Welsh Government needs to prepare a strategy for international and EU
recruitment. The needs of the health and social care sector in Wales need to be a
factor in any future UK immigration framework.

Health and Social Care professions in Wales value highly the ability of the Welsh
Government to make and implement policy and legislation for Wales to be
responsive to the country’s needs. Our hope is that the Welsh Government and the
UK Government will work together over the repatriation of legal powers from the
EU in a manner that robustly protects the devolution settlement for Wales.

The Welsh Government must engage as widely as possible with relevant experts
and agencies within the health sectors in order to inform future policies or legislative
changes.

The Welsh and UK Government should work closely to ensure that statutory
employee protections continue.

The Welsh Government needs to prepare a strategy around continued access and
promotion of participation in international and EU research collaboration specifically
considering its impact on improving patient care and workforce retention. The UK
Government also need to consider this matter at UK level.

Pack Page 11



6. The Welsh and UK Governments should ensure a regulatory system is in place,
without break of continuity, to ensure the continued mutual recognition of
professional qualifications

7. The Welsh and UK Government should ensure that clear arrangements are in place
protect the healthcare rights of Welsh citizens living in Europe and EU citizens living
in Wales. Furthermore these arrangements need to be clearly communicated to the
communities concerned and to health and social care service providers.

8. The Welsh and UK Government should ensure that arrangements for the continued
surveillance of infectious diseases, sharing of relevant data and cross-border health
control are in place. Moreover these arrangements need to be communicated
clearly to the relevant health and social care organisations and other public bodes
both accountable and responsible for action

As with the other areas of uncertainty, the Royal College of Nursing and other
organisations across the profession would welcome any work that the Committee is
able to carry out which might encourage or support the Welsh Government in
progressing these recommendations and in engaging with stakeholders.

We would be very happy to provide further information or to discuss with you in more
detail if that would be helpful.

Kind regards

Yours sincerely

Soa dppnaticy

TINA DONNELLY, CBE, TD, DL, FRCN, CCMI
DIRECTOR, RCN WALES

Pack Page 12



Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Brexit Symposium: Implications for Health &
Social Care in Wales

Recommendations from the Health & Social Care Professions
10" July 2018

Participating Organisations:

British Medical Association

Royal College of GPs

Royal College of Midwives

Royal College of Nursing

Royal College of Physicians

Royal Pharmaceutical Society

Welsh Local Government Association

Pack Page 13




M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Executive Summary

Wales’ relationship with the EU has a direct and indirect impact on delivery of health
and social care. Both the UK Government and the Welsh Government have a
responsibility to ensure that the health and social care needs of the population of Wales
are not negatively impacted by the UK'’s departure from the EU. It is critical that both
Government’s consider the potential impact of departure on the health and social care
sector with the same level of priority and concern as the manufacturing or agricultural
sectors.

Until the full implications of Britain leaving the European Union are fully understood,
there will be an uncertainty around many issues, including the workforce supply chain,
workers’ rights terms and conditions, research funding and collaboration and reciprocal
healthcare arrangements. However commissioning research, engaging experts in the
process of risk assessment and engaging stakeholders in the planning process will
mitigate this uncertainty.

Throughout this period of uncertainty it is vital that quality of care is maintained and
that nurses and health care workers from the EU who are working across the UK
continue to feel valued.

On 10" July 2018 the Royal College of Nursing Wales held a Symposium for fellow
Royal Colleges and professional bodies in Wales to discuss the implications that Brexit
has for the delivery of health and social care services. The programme and full list of
attendees is included as an annex to this report. The intention was to discuss issues
of common concern.

The discussion was lively and informed and the opportunity to discuss the issues in
detail welcomed by all present. Indeed, there was a consensus that the implications of
Brexit in the context of health and care is not yet fully understood, and deserves greater
focus and attention at UK and Welsh Government level.

Common Themes of Concern:

e The regulation of medicines (i.e. public protection and issues of supply)

e Access to international collaboration in higher education and research (and the
impact of this on patient care and workforce recruitment, retention)

e Access to largescale funding to tackle health inequalities (e.g. infrastructure
projects)

e The need to safeguard international recruitment as part of ensuring a
sustainable workforce

e The need to safeguard working conditions and employment rights as part of
ensuring a sustainable workforce.

e A desire to protect the current constitutional ability of Wales to set health policy
and legislation as part of the devolution settlement

e Reciprocal healthcare arrangements

e Threats to public health (cross-border disease control etc.)

Pack Page 14



M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol

Cymru

Royal College of Nursing

Wales

8 Recommendations for Government

1.

The Welsh Government needs to prepare a strategy for international and EU
recruitment. The needs of the health and social care sector in Wales need to be a
factor in any future UK immigration framework.

Health and Social Care professions in Wales value highly the ability of the Welsh
Government to make and implement policy and legislation for Wales to be
responsive to the country’s needs. Our hope is that the Welsh Government and the
UK Government will work together over the repatriation of legal powers from the
EU in a manner that robustly protects the devolution settlement for Wales.

The Welsh Government must engage as widely as possible with relevant experts
and agencies within the health sectors in order to inform future policies or legislative
changes.

The Welsh and UK Government should work closely to ensure that statutory
employee protections continue.

The Welsh Government needs to prepare a strategy around continued access and
promotion of participation in international and EU research collaboration specifically
considering its impact on improving patient care and workforce retention. The UK
Government also need to consider this matter at UK level.

The Welsh and UK Governments should ensure a regulatory system is in place,
without break of continuity, to ensure the continued mutual recognition of
professional qualifications

The Welsh and UK Government should ensure that clear arrangements are in place
protect the healthcare rights of Welsh citizens living in Europe and EU citizens living
in Wales. Furthermore these arrangements need to be clearly communicated to the
communities concerned and to health and social care service providers.

The Welsh and UK Government should ensure that arrangements for the continued
surveillance of infectious diseases, sharing of relevant data and cross-border health
control are in place. Moreover these arrangements need to be communicated
clearly to the relevant health and social care organisations and other public bodes
both accountable and responsible for action

Pack Page 15



w Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing

Wales

5 Key Questions for Government

1. What plans does the UK Government have to update the EU/EEA agreement to
ensure that nurses from the EEA looking to revalidate post-Brexit are able to do
s0?

2. Is the Welsh Government planning new guidance for the NHS on data sharing and
access to the relevant international electronic systems in relation to public health
protection?

3. Has the Welsh Government completed an assessment of risk to the continued and
uninterrupted supply of medicines, medical radioisotopes, vaccines, equipment,
devices and other supplies?

4. What are the arrangements for implementing the Falsified Medicines Directive and
what will happen after March 20197

5. What scenario-planning is the Welsh Government doing in case of a ‘no deal’?

Pack Page 16



M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Discussion Summary - Impact on the workforce

The potential for Brexit to have a negative impact on Wales’ ability to recruit and retain
staff from Europe is a significant concern across health and care professions. Wales
must be able to continue to attract high calibre professionals, students and trainees,
whether in the NHS, social care or independent sector, in order to be able to maintain
a stable workforce that can deliver high quality services. The UK Government’s
approach to immigration has yet to be made clear, with a White Paper expected in the
autumn. Participants in the discussion were clear any new rules should allow for the
health and social care sector to be prioritised in terms of recruitment, both from within
and outside the EU.

While there have been estimates of the number of healthcare professionals from the
EU working in the NHS in Wales (e.g. around 300 nurses) the number working in the
independent sector is not known, nor the number of health and social care workers.
The Welsh Government has recently commissioned research in this area which was
strongly welcomed by the participants?.

The Wales Migration Service has analysed the Labour Force Survey data. Their figures
show that there are around 69,000 EU citizens working in Wales: around 4 per cent of
the work-force. The Wales Migratory Service analysis shows that around a third of all
migrant workers (EU and non-EU) work in public services. If the pattern is the same for
both EU and non-EU migrants, that would mean around 23,000 EU citizens working in
Wales’ public services.? This demonstrates that the social care sector is particularly
reliant on migrant workers from the EU.

The RCN estimates that there is a shortfall of about 3000 nurses in Wales, and in
England the number of vacancies is approximately 44,000. In the context of Brexit and
recruitment from Europe, it is also important to note that figures from the World Health
Organisation suggest that by 2030, we will need an additional 9 million nurses and
midwives in order to be able to meet demand?. Nurse recruitment is therefore a global
issue, and Wales and the UK are competing in a global market to attract nurses from
Europe and around the world.

Another area of concern was the mutual recognition of professional qualifications
across European countries. For example the education and training of registered
nurses in the UK must conform to standards set out by the EU. This is contained in a
law called the Mutual Recognition of Professional Qualifications (MRPQ) Directive.* As
well as raising the standards of nursing education, the MRPQ Directive has enabled
the UK to recruit nurses and doctors from Europe to help fill our own workforce
shortages. If the UK decides to move away from these jointly developed standards, the
UK may lose important safeguards, lose access to alert mechanisms, and miss out on

! http://record.assembly.wales/Plenary/4994#C103879, Vaughan Gething AM, Section 380

2 'Implications of Brexit on public services in Wales', Nuria Zolle, Wales Public Services 2025, May 2016
3 http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/nursing-midwifery/en/

4 EU Directive 2005/36/EC Annex V.2 (5.2.1)

Pack Page 17


http://record.assembly.wales/Plenary/4994#C103879
http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/nursing-midwifery/en/

M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

crucial exchanges between professional regulators. This may have implications for the
UK's ability to recruit and retain nursing staff who are EU/EEA nationals.

Also discussed was the issue of revalidation. Currently all nurses who are on the
Nursing and Midwifery Council register have to re-register every three years through a
process known as revalidation. Post Brexit if there is no clear EU/EEA agreement in
place then potentially those nurses who are currently on the register and looking to
revalidate may not be able to do so under the Nursing and Midwifery Order 2001.

e How is the Welsh Government going to recruit and retain the European
workforce, both within the NHS and the independent and care sectors?

e What more can be done to ensure Wales remains an attractive and welcoming
place to live and work?

e What processes are being put in place to ensure the continued recognition of
professional qualifications after Brexit?

e What discussions have Welsh Government had with UK Government

regarding an EU/EEA agreement to ensure that nurses from the EEA looking
to revalidate post-Brexit are able to do so?

Discussion Summary - Reciprocal healthcare arrangements

The current arrangements on reciprocal healthcare are mutually beneficial for UK
citizens and citizens from the EU. As such, it is welcomed that the UK Government is
currently proposing to continue with these arrangements post-Brexit for UK citizens
living in the EU (and vice versa). However, there remains considerable uncertainty and
anxiety regarding the details, particularly around the requirements for UK citizens who
currently benefit from ‘S1’ arrangements, to apply for residency within the EU country
they are living and the associated costs of local taxes. The future of the EHIC card is
also uncertain and it is not clear whether UK citizens will be required to take out private
health insurance to travel to Europe.

¢ What joint working is the Welsh Government undertaking with the UK
Government to protect the healthcare rights of Welsh citizens living in Europe
(and EU citizens living in Wales)?

Pack Page 18



M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Discussion Summary - Threats to public health

The EU plays a vital role in maintaining public health across all its member states, and
there are sector-wide concerns that Brexit and the withdrawal of EU funding for public
health measures will negatively impact the health of our population.

The EU facilitates collaboration on cross-border health threats, such as communicable
diseases which can spread easily and anti-microbial resistance through the European
Centre for Disease Control (ECDC). The ECDC identifies and assesses risks posed to
European citizens’ health from infectious diseases. Their work monitors potential
outbreaks and recommends early warning response systems to protect our health. It
is unclear currently what the ongoing relationship with ECDC will be both in terms of
submission and comparison of UK data on infections/antibiotic resistance, and the
management of outbreaks in Europe that could impact on the UK.

The lack of a contributory relationship to ECDC activities would exclude the UK from
reporting and comparing important surveillance data on communicable diseases and
health threats. This could affect the preparedness of the UK’s health and social care
system if a communicable disease outbreak develops and we need to respond rapidly.

Central to the control of infectious diseases is data protection and data sharing. Without
rules underpinning the EU system of data sharing, it is unclear how necessary data will
be shared and accessed. It is thought that this could even lead to reintroducing a
system of quarantine in order to control the spread of disease. The centre for disease
control is based in Stockholm but, under data protection legislation, they would not be
able to share their data legally with the UK once is outside of the EU. The UK must
retain the ability to contribute to, and compare, surveillance data to ensure health
systems can deal with cross-border health threats e.g. infectious diseases and the
threat of antimicrobial resistance and have robust protection arrangements.

e What are the arrangements for surveillance of infectious diseases and cross-
border health control? How will we receive and respond to international health
alerts?

e What risk assessments have the Welsh Government conducted into our
continued ability to protect the population against cross-border health threats?

e What is the Welsh Governments assessment in relation to data sharing and
access to the relevant IT systems in order to enable public health protection?

Pack Page 19



M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Discussion Summary - Regulations on medicines

EU regulations contribute a wide range of areas including: the standards of training for
nursing staff; the development and approval of medicines; clinical trials participation
and regulation; licensing of medical devices (e.g. contact lenses, x-ray machines,
pacemakers and hip replacements); licensing of in-vitro medical devices (e.g.
pregnancy tests and blood sugar monitoring systems for diabetes).

There is a possibility that the UK will find it more difficult to access medicines and
medical devices if we choose to create new frameworks which are different from EU
regulations. This may cause delays in new drugs being made available for patients,
with the potential to cause significant harm. For instance, we could see delays of 12 to
24 months for UK patients receiving cancer drugs®. Ensuring timely access to medicine
is critical for all patients in the UK. To achieve this, the UK Government is likely to
require a formal agreement with the EU to continue to support and participate in
relevant assessments, with a commitment that the UK will maintain and enhance these
standards in the future.

The UK Government should also agree mutual recognition of the CE mark between
the UK and the EU. The CE mark indicates compliance with EU health and safety
standards and allows for free movement of products.

Similarly, there are serious concerns within the health arena in relation to radioisotopes
and their movement (currently governed by Euratom). Radioisotopes are highly
valuable in medicine, and are widely used in the diagnosis and treatment of disease.
Not surprisingly, there are tight regulations surrounding the transportation and
importation of radioactive materials. Radioisotopes also have a very short half-life and
rapid decay meaning there cannot be any delays in the products reaching patients if
they are to be effective. The departure from the Euratom treaty, which governs EU
trade in nuclear materials, will potentially create obstacles to these products being
imported. Plans need to be put in place now to ensure that the supply of these
resources is not interrupted.

Related to this are the concerns around the Falsified Medicines Directive which is due
to be rolled out across EU member states from 9 February 2019. The Directive aims
to address the significant problems and threats caused by fake medicines. Under the
Directive, all new packs of prescription medicines put on the market from February
2019 will need to be booked onto a European Medicines Verification System (EMVS)
and will have to have two safety features: a unique identifier and an anti-tampering
device. Health professionals will be required to scan medicines prior to administering
them and that would then record them as decommissioned from EMVS. IT systems
will have to register with SecureMed which is setting up 13 national hubs, and the
equipment to scan medicines will need to be available in all GP practices, pharmacies
and hospitals.

® Ross Hawkins, Cancer drugs may be delayed after Brexit, say experts. Available at:
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/ health-38922366 February 2010.

Pack Page 20


https://www.ft.com/content/9b99159e-ff2a-11e6-96f8-3700c5664d30

M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

There are clearly significant logistical and financial implications for complying with this
Directive, and there is a complete lack of clarity over what work is currently underway
to prepare for being compliant, or what alternative measures will be put in place after
Brexit to ensure the UK is still safeguarded against false medicines.

e What is Welsh Government doing to ensure continuing and uninterrupted
medicines, medical radioisotopes, vaccines, equipment, devices and supplies?

e What are the arrangements for implementing the Falsified Medicines Directive
and what will happen after March 2019?

Discussion Summary - Working conditions and employment rights

Much of existing UK employment law is derived from the EU and it is vital that the
protections that this provides for health and social care staff in Wales are continued,
and existing terms and conditions preserved. Participants urged the Welsh
Government to work closely with the UK Government on this matter. For instance, the
existing legislation covers areas such improvements in the safety and health of workers
in the UK, and promotes workers’ rights around health and safety. There is also the
European Working Time Directive which sets out the number of hours an employee
can work without taking a break, and the maximum number of hours that can be worked
in a week.

Any weakening in the protections which health and care workers in Wales currently
benefit from, could result in staff having to work longer hours or in less favourable
conditions. This is turn could risk patient safety by increasing the pressure which the
workforce is under and reducing morale. The Welsh Government should conduct a risk
assessment into the likely impact of Brexit in these areas and work with the UK
Government on making sure that they continue.

e The Welsh Government should assess the impact of Brexit on the areas of

employment law and employee protections and work closely with the UK
Government to ensure they continue

Pack Page 21



M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Higher Education and research

Clinical research is undertaken as a partnership between universities and the NHS
often across many EU countries. Participants were concerned that Wales will lose
opportunities to engage in and lead this type of research. It is well evidenced that
international research collaboration increases research excellence, and mobility
increases researcher productivity®. Opportunities for collaborative research and
academic exchange must therefore continue. For instance, £33m was recently
announced for health innovation, funded jointly by European Regional Development
Fund and Welsh Government. Access to these kinds of funds that must continue.

Furthermore, the impact of withdrawing EU funding from Higher Education could have
a serious impact on Welsh Universities’” ability to recruit and retain high calibre staff.
This is also true for senior medical, nursing and other staff working in higher education.
If Wales and the UK become less attractive in terms of academic and research
credentials and opportunities, it is likely that some individuals will look to work
elsewhere. Similarly, the uncertainty around Brexit and the significant unknowns which
surround a number of areas, could see the Higher Education and research sectors
losing a number of high calibre and irreplaceable staff members.

There is a risk of loss of access to the EU’s research funding programme (Horizon
2020 and the subsequent 9th EU Research and Development Framework Programme)
and student exchange programmes (Erasmus+). The UK is currently not expected to
be able to participate in the wider policy exchange mechanisms that European
Commission initiates and funds, in particular the Health Programme, an initiative which
mandates the EU to protect public health.

However participants also noted that the UK is a global player in the fields of research,
education and health — collaborating both within Europe and beyond — and Brexit may
give Welsh Government an opportunity to re-focus on Wales’ strengths in this regard.

e What assurances can Welsh Government provide those working within the
fields of research and Higher Education that Wales will remain a place of
excellence and opportunity?

e What scoping of opportunities is Welsh Government carrying out for future
collaboration and research projects in the EU and beyond?

& Department for Business, Innovation & Skills, International Comparative Performance of the UK Research Base
— 2013. Available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/263729/bis-
13-1297-internationalcomparative-performance-of-the-UK-research-base-2013.pdf

Pack Pagm 22


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/263729/bis-13-1297-internationalcomparative-performance-of-the-UK-research-base-2013.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/263729/bis-13-1297-internationalcomparative-performance-of-the-UK-research-base-2013.pdf

M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Discussion Summary - Impact on health inequalities

Wales has some of the poorest regions in the European Union and has been a major
beneficiary of EU funds aimed at tackling poverty and reducing health inequalities.
Withdrawal of this funding without adequate replacement risks increasing levels of
deprivation and exacerbating health inequalities. It is likely that this will be felt most
acutely in Wales’ rural communities. The UK Government is looking to replace EU
Structural Funds, but it is unclear whether Wales would receive the same proportion of
funding as it currently does; indeed the alternative currently being discussed at UK
Government level is that Welsh local authorities should compete with English local
authorities for funding from a new UK fund. The fund will not be distributed on the basis
of need but on who can compete effectively. Participants believed the Welsh
Government must work hard to advocate for Wales and do everything in its power to
ensure that the money that Wales deserves comes to Wales.

Welsh Government must also be mindful of the wider determinants of health, and work
hard to ensure that living standards and public services do not decline post-Brexit, as
this will have an inevitable impact on the health and well-being of the population as a
whole. To quote Dr Julian Tudor Hart FRCGP FRCP — “Medical services are not the
main determinant of mortality or morbidity; these depend most upon standards of
nutrition, housing, working environment, and education, and the presence or absence
of war.”

e What work is being undertaken by the Welsh Government on the wider

determinants of health to ensure that Brexit does not negatively impact on the
health and well-being of the population?

Discussion Summary — Devolution and health policy/legislation

The symposium also discussion the devolution and the potential threat which Brexit
poses to powers currently held by the National Assembly for Wales. Participants were
unanimous in asserting the final deal on leaving the European Union must respect the
devolution settlement and should not undermine it in any way. There were concerns
that not all EU laws that currently fall with the Assembly’s competency will be
transposed into Welsh law, and will rather be held by the UK Government before being
redistributed. The current devolution settlement which allows health policy to be
shaped for Welsh need and encourages citizen participation should be protected.

e What assurance can Welsh Government give that it is firmly and robustly

protecting the devolution settlement for Wales and working with the other
devolved nations to do the same?

Pack Page 23



w Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing

Wales

Conclusion & Future Actions

The opportunity to discuss the issues relevant to the health and social care sectors
was welcomed and valued by attendees to the event, and it was agreed that it had
been a fruitful and worthwhile discussion.

A number of actions and next steps were agreed:

A report outlining the discussion, identifying common themes and proposed
recommendations would be drafted and once agreed by participants would be
submitted to:

Alun Cairns MP, Secretary of State for Wales

Professor Mark Drakeford AM, Cabinet Secretary for Finance
Vaughan Gething AM, Cabinet Secretary for Health & Social Services
Dr Dai Lloyd AM, Chair of Health, Social Care & Sport Committee
Angela Burns AM, Welsh Conservatives Health Spokesperson

Rhun ap lorwerth AM, Plaid Cymru Health Spokesperson

Caroline Jones AM, UKIP Wales Health Spokesperson

In addition the RCN and other participating organisations would continue to collaborate
and look to create other opportunities to raise the profile of these issues, and enhance
political and public awareness.

Pack Page 24



w Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing

Wales

Annex A — Copy of Symposium Programme

Brexit Symposium: Health & Social Care Concerns

Tuesday 10 July 2018 Future Inns Hotel, Cardiff Bay

09.45 Registration and refreshments

10.00 Welcome and overview of RCN concerns
Tina Donnelly CBE, TD, DL, FRCN
Director, RCN Wales

10.15 Opening Discussion - General Concerns

e Dr Stephen Monaghan, Chair — BMA Welsh Council’s legislation
subcommittee, BMA Cymru Wales

e Julie Richards, Chair - Royal College of Midwives Wales

o Cheryl Way, Member Welsh Pharmacy Board,
Royal Pharmaceutical Society Wales

Chair: Dr Dai Lloyd AM,

Chair of the Health, Social Care & Sport Committee

10.45 The Political Response

o David Rees AM, Labour, Chair, External Affairs and Additional
Legislation Committee, & Chair of Cross Party Group on Nursing &
Midwifery
Chair - Cross Party Group on Nursing & Midwifery

e Rhun ap lorwerth AM, Plaid Cymru
Shadow Cabinet Secretary for Health, Well-being and Sport

Chair: Dr Dai Lloyd AM,
Chair of the Health, Social Care & Sport Committee
[Please note the Conservative Party and UKIP both gave apologies for this session]

11.15 Break for tea and coffee

11.30 A Message to the Welsh Government: Break out Session
Opening remarks from Rosie Raison,
Policy & Public Affairs Officer, RCN Wales
In groups attendees will be asked to decide on key questions for Welsh
Government. These will be published as a report.

12.00 Brexit: Higher Education and Research
o Professor Daniel Kelly FRCN RN PhD,
Royal College of Nursing Chair of Nursing Research
e Diane Powles RGN,
Education and Lifelong Learning Advisor RCN Wales
Chair: Nigel Downes,
Associate Director, Professional Practice, RCN Wales

12.30 Break for LUNCH

Pack Page 25



w Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing

Wales

13.30 Brexit and Health Inequalities

o Dr Rebecca Payne,
Chair - Royal College of General Practitioners Wales

e Lowri Gwilym , Team Manager, Europe and Regeneration,
Welsh Local Government Association

e Dr James Coulson,
Fellow - Royal College of Physicians

Chair: Nigel Downes

Associate Director, Professional Practice, RCN Wales

14.00 A Message to the Welsh Government: Break out Session
Opening remarks from Lisa Turnbull,
Policy & Public Affairs Advisor, RCN Wales
In groups attendees will be asked to decide on key questions for Welsh
Government. These will be published as a report.

14.30 Overview of Discussion
Tina Donnelly CBE, TD, DL, FRCN
Director, RCN Wales

14.45 Closing Remarks and Vote of Thanks
Billy Nichols, Vice Chair, Royal College of Nursing Wales.

15.00 Close of event

Pack Page 26



w Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing

Wales

Annex B — Attendee List

Name

Job Title

Organisation

Dr Stephen Monaghan

Chair, BMA Welsh Council’s
legislation subcommittee

Public Health Wales. BMA Cymru
Wales

Julie Richards

Chair, Royal College of Midwives
UK & Wales

Royal College of Midwives

Cheryl Way

Pharmacy Lead, NHS Wales
Informatics Service and Member
Welsh Pharmacy Board

Royal Pharmaceutical Society Wales

Lowri Gwilym

Team Manager, Europe &
Regeneration

Welsh Local Government Association

Dr Rebecca Payne

Chair, RCGP Wales

Royal College of General Practitioners

Dr James Coulson

Clinical senior lecturer at Cardiff
University, Fellow of Royal College
of Physicians

Royal College of Physicians

Professor Danny Kelly

RCN Fellow, Royal College of
Nursing Chair of Nursing Research

School of Nursing & Midwifery, Cardiff
University

Diane Powles

Education & Lifelong Learning
Adviser

Royal College of Nursing Wales

David Rees AM

Chair of External Affairs
Committee & Chair of Cross
Party Group on Nursing &
Midwifery

Welsh Labour/National Assembly for
Wales

Dr Dai Lloyd AM

Chair of Health & Social Care
Committee

Plaid Cymru/National Assembly for
Wales

Rhun ap lorwerth AM

Plaid Cymru Health
Spokesperson

Plaid Cymru/National Assembly for
Wales

Joshua Bell Research for David Rees AM National Assembly for Wales
Gillian Knight Nursing Officer Welsh Government
Liam Anstey Public Affairs Officer BMA Cymru Wales

Ross Gregory

Head of External Relations

Royal Pharmaceutical Society Wales

Catherine Evans
O’Brien

Health, Housing & Social Care
Lead

Older Peoples Commissioner for
Wales

Louis Urruty

Policy & Public Affairs Officer

Royal College of General Practitioners
Wales

Oliver John Policy Officer Royal College of Psychiatrists
Louise Walby Primary Care Nursing Nurse of | Cwm Taf University Health Board
the Year Award 2018 winner,
Respiratory Nurse Facilitator
Billy Nichols Vice Chair, RCN Welsh Board Royal College of Nursing Wales
Tina Donnelly CBE, TD, | Director Royal College of Nursing Wales
DL, FRCN

Pack Page 27




w Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing

Wales

Nigel Downes

Associate Director, Professional
Practice

Royal College of Nursing Wales

Dr Sue Thomas

Primary Care & Independent
Sector Adviser

Royal College of Nursing Wales

Jean Christensen

Education & Lifelong Learning
Adviser

Royal College of Nursing Wales

Lisa Turnbull

Policy & Public Affairs Adviser

Royal College of Nursing Wales

Rosie Raison

Policy & Public Affairs Officer

Royal College of Nursing Wales

Liz Newton

Policy & Public Affairs Assistant

Royal College of Nursing Wales

Pack Pages 28




M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Annex C — RCN Wales Policy Briefing

Brexit Briefing: Implications for Health & Social Care in Wales

Wales’ relationship with the EU has had a substantial direct and indirect impact on
delivery of health and social care within the UK. Both the UK Government and the
Welsh Government must ensure that the health and social care needs of the population
of Wales are not negatively impacted by the UK’s departure from the EU.

Until the full implications of Britain leaving the European Union are fully understood,
there will be an uncertainty around many issues, including the workforce supply chain,
workers’ rights terms and conditions, research funding and collaboration and reciprocal
healthcare arrangements.

Throughout this period of uncertainty it is vital that quality of care is maintained and

that nurses and health care workers from the EU who are working across the UK
continue to feel valued.

The key concerns for the RCN in relation to Brexit and its implications are:

e The sustainability of the nursing workforce

o The potential impacts on the recruitment and retention of the EU nursing
workforce should be assessed now and monitored closely over the next
decade.

o The exact figures for the number of EU nurses and the healthcare workers
in Wales is not known to the RCN — although we would estimate around
1000 EU nurses in the NHS in Wales

o The RCN would welcome clarification on this figure as well an assessment
of how many EU workers (both registered nurses and healthcare support
workers) there are in the independent health and care sectors.

e Safeguarding employment and social law provision, and preserve existing terms
and conditions
o This includes health and safety regulations, working time, consultation on
collective redundancies, and safeguarding employment rights in the event of
transfers of undertakings (TUPE)
o The Welsh Government should conduct a risk assessment into the likely
impact of Brexit in these areas

e Reciprocal healthcare arrangements
o Reciprocal healthcare schemes must be retained or suitably replaced, and
the rights of EEA and UK citizens living abroad protected.
o Nurses working in the NHS need to understand and be trained in any new
guidance.

Pack Page 29



w Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing

Wales

e Public health
o The UK must retain the ability to contribute to, and compare, surveillance
data to ensure health systems can deal with cross-border health threats e.qg.
infectious diseases and the threat of antimicrobial resistance and have
robust protection arrangements.
o The Welsh Government should conduct a risk assessment into the likely
impact of Brexit in these areas

e Research collaboration & funding

o The impact of withdrawing EU funding from Higher Education could have a
serious impact on Welsh Universities ability to recruit and retain high calibre
staff. This is also true for nursing higher education.

o Clinical research is undertaken as a partnership between universities and
the NHS often across many EU countries. We are concerned that Wales will
lose opportunities to participate and lead this type of research.

o Opportunities for collaborative research and academic exchange must
continue e.g. £33m recently announced for health innovation funded jointly
by European Regional Development Fund and Welsh Government — access
to these kinds of funds must continue.

e Stability of trade arrangements

o A new regulatory system for medical devices and drug safety must be put in
place.

o The Welsh Government should conduct a risk assessment into the possibility
of disruption to supply of medicines and devices

o New trade deals must not have a detrimental impact on patient care and
health workers’ employment conditions (e.g. a new TTIP). RCN members
were strongly and vocally opposed to TTIP.

e Potential impact on the devolution settlement
o While issues such as regulation are best dealt with at a UK level, any EU
laws that that currently fall within the Assembly’s competency, should be
transposed into Welsh law
o The RCN is a supporter of the current devolution settlement which allows
health policy to be shaped for Welsh need and encourages citizen
participation.

e Tackling social and health inequalities

o EU Structural Funds have seen significant amounts of money used to
support projects which helped to reduce social and thus health inequality

o Congress resolutions and Welsh Board discussion shows that our members
recognise the causes of ill health and often in social inequalities (e.g.
homelessness/housing, education and prosperity).

o The UK alternative currently being discussed is that Welsh local authorities
should compete with English local authorities for funding from a new UK fund
that will not be distributed on the basis of need. We would argue that need
should be the critical factor and funds for Wales given to Wales.

Pack Pags 30



w Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing

Wales

Key asks/recommendations:

e Welsh Government should engage widely with relevant experts and agencies
within the health sectors in order to inform any future policies or legislative
changes.

e Welsh Government conduct the necessary risk assessments relating to the
potential impacts of Brexit on health and social care so that steps can be taken
to mitigate those risks.

e Following a debate at the RCN’s Congress event in Belfast, RCN Wales will be
consulting with members about supporting a referendum on the final Brexit deal.

Pack Page 31



M

Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol
Cymru
Royal College of Nursing
Wales

Annex D —Relevant Recent Publications

Written Statement: Brexit — the risks for the future of health and social
care in Wales, Vaughan Gething, Cabinet Secretary for Health and
Social Services, 26 June 2018
https://gov.wales/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2018/brexithealthands
ocialcare/?lang=en

External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee Reports - Wales’
future relationship with Europe — Part one: a view from Wales
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-1d11491/cr-ld11491-

e.pdf

Royal College of Nursing — Brexit: EU nurses in the UK -
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-
006982

Royal College of Nursing — Brexit: Protecting workers' rights after Brexit -
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-
006985

Royal College of Nursing — Brexit: Collaboration for research and
learning - https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-
development/publications/pdf-006986

Royal College of Nursing — Brexit: EU regulations on professionals and
medicine - https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-
development/publications/pdf-006983

Royal College of Nursing — Brexit: Addressing public health threats -
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-
006984

National Assembly for Wales ‘In Brief' Brexit Blog articles and updates -
https://seneddresearch.blog/category/brexit/

Pack Pagm 32


https://gov.wales/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2018/brexithealthandsocialcare/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2018/brexithealthandsocialcare/?lang=en
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld11491/cr-ld11491-e.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld11491/cr-ld11491-e.pdf
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006982
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006982
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006985
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006985
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006986
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006986
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006983
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006983
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006984
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pdf-006984
https://seneddresearch.blog/category/brexit/

Agenda ltem 2.4

The Welsh NHS Confederation response to the External Affairs and Additional Legislation
Committee follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit — health
and medicines.

Contact: Nesta Lloyd — Jones, Policy and Public Affairs Manager, the Welsh NHS Confederation.
Nesta.lloyd-jones@welshconfed.org Tel: 02920 349857

Date created: | 3 September 2018

Introduction

1. The Welsh NHS Confederation, which represents the seven Health Boards and three NHS
Trusts in Wales, welcomes the opportunity to comment further on Wales’ preparedness
for exiting the European Union. As you noted in your letter, this is done amid ongoing
negotiations between the UK Government and the European Union (EU) and the
continued uncertainty about the eventual outcome. The comments below should be seen
in this light, with developments happening on a weekly basis between the EU and the UK
Government, the UK Government and the Welsh Government and the information shared
and engagement between the Welsh Government and the NHS in Wales.

2. The Welsh NHS Confederation has previously provided detailed responses to the External

Affairs and Additional Legislation (EAAL) Committee inquiries into Brexit, namely:

e In November 2016 we provided a written response to the EAAL Committee
consultation on the implications for Wales of Britain exiting the European Union;

e In October 2017 we provided a written response and gave oral evidence to the EAAL
Committee inquiry into resilience and preparedness: The Welsh Government’s
administrative and financial response to Brexit.

e In January 2018 we attended and provided evidence to the EAAL Committee
roundtable discussing the implications of Brexit for Wales.

e In February 2018 we responded to EAAL Committee inquiry into Wales’ future
relationship with the European Union.

3. Our response on this occasion highlights the key developments following our written
response in February 2018 in relation to how the Welsh Government and the NHS in
Wales are preparing for the UKs departure from the EU.

Key issues for health and social care organisations

4. As previously highlighted to the Committee, there are a number of issues for health and
social care organisations as the UK prepares to leave the EU. Due to the issues being a
concern for a range of health and social care organisations the Welsh NHS Confederation’s
Policy Forum published a briefing in June 2018, “The key issues for health and social care
organisations as the UK prepares to leave the European Union”,' which was endorsed by
20 organisations. The Policy Forum briefing is submitted with this written response
because it provides the most up to date information around the key issues and puts
forward the desired outcomes when the UK leaves the EU. The outcomes highlighted with
the briefing include:

1
Pack Page 33



mailto:Nesta.lloyd-jones@welshconfed.org

> o

A continued domestic and international pipeline of high calibre professionals and trainees
in health and social care to deliver sustainable NHS, social care, and independent health
services to ensure the best care for our communities and people who use our services.
Continued recognition of professional qualifications for people trained in the EU27 and
mechanisms to alert each other of health and social care professionals who are prohibited
or restricted to practice.

Protection of workers’ employment rights and patients’ rights post-Brexit.

Health and social care organisations across the UK continuing to participate in EU
collaborative programmes, and lead and contribute positively to European Reference
Networks and other collaborative EU networks, such as those which support medical
research, post-Brexit.

Patients continue to benefit from early access to the wide range of innovative health
technologies available on the EU market and not miss out on participation in EU clinical
trials.

Regulatory alignment for the benefit of patients and the public’s health, so that UK
patients continue to have early access to the wide range of innovative health technologies
available.

Reciprocal healthcare arrangements preserved.

Robust co-ordination mechanisms on public health and wellbeing with the same or higher
level of safety guaranteed through domestic standards and regulations.

A strong funding commitment to the healthcare sector, promoting solutions to minimise
any additional pressures which may result from Brexit, as well as advocating for any loss
of EU funds to be offset by alternative funding.

Continued engagement between the Welsh Government and the UK Government to
ensure the interests of the health and social care sector in Wales are safeguarded during
the withdrawal process and beyond.

Welsh Government and UK Government

5.

6.

As previously highlighted, the exact terms on which the UK will leave the EU are not yet
clear, and this presents challenges in terms of forward planning for the Welsh
Government. However, over the period since the referendum the Welsh Government has
engaged with health and care bodies to identify areas that may be affected by leaving the
EU, including NHS Executive Board and Wales NHS Partnership Forum.

The Welsh NHS Confederation and our members have been working with Welsh
Government officials to consider and assess the scale of impact for Welsh health and
social care services post Brexit, including contingency options. Since October 2017 the
Welsh NHS Confederation has agreed to be the main contact for coordinating specific
Brexit actions across NHS organisations and working with the Welsh Government. This
work is intended to support discussions on managing risks effectively within health and
social care and will support the development of a shared work programme considering
priority areas including; workforce, professional qualifications, reciprocal healthcare,
regulatory issues, medicines, research and innovation, procurement and competition law,
public health, disease prevention and employment rights. Other relevant areas will also
be considered as they arise.

2
Pack Page 34



7. Since our previous written submission in February 2018 the Welsh Government has now
established a Health and Social Care EU Transition Leadership Group, of which the Welsh
NHS Confederation is a member. The Leadership Group met for the first time in August
2018 and will now be meeting on a monthly basis. The vision of the Group is to maintain
a strategic oversight of arrangements for EU Transition, including risks and mitigation
actions pre and post EU exit. The purpose of the Group is to advise the Director General
for Health and Social Services in Wales on: the challenges faced by Welsh services,
including potential impacts of Brexit on services and on outcomes for people and patients;
the development of appropriate responses to address challenges and potential impacts,
and co-ordinated actions by service providers and partners, including the Welsh
Government’s strategy on EU transition for health and social services; the status of
contingency planning for different credible scenarios, including ‘no deal’; and encouraging
co-ordinated communication by service providers and partners, with the public and other
stakeholders, across Wales and beyond.

8. Specifically in relation to medicines, during the NHS Chief Pharmacists monthly meetings
the Welsh Government has made the Chief Pharmacists aware of the work being
undertaken by the Department of Health and Social Care in England to assess risks to the
UK medicines supply chain. The NHS Chief Pharmacists expect to have further discussions
regarding mitigating actions once further information is made available and following the
UK Government Technical Notices issued on 23 August 2018 around the planning for a
potential no-deal Brexit. The Chief Pharmacists will continue to discuss Brexit during their
regular conference calls and Brexit has been added as a standing agenda item in their face
to face meetings.

9. On 23 August the UK Government published the first batch in a series of technical notices
advising businesses and citizens what they need to do to prepare for an unlikely ‘no-deal’
Brexit scenario. The Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, Matt Hancock, wrote to
all health and social care organisations' in England to update them on the UK
Government’s ongoing preparations to protect patients and health and social care
services in the event of a March 2019 “no deal” scenario. The letter sets out what the
health and social care system needs to do to step up preparations on the ground to ensure
business continuity. In particular it announces a new scheme to ensure a sufficient and
seamless supply of medicines, in collaboration with pharmaceutical companies, which will
mean that hospitals, GPs, pharmacies and patients will not need to “stockpile”
unnecessarily. Under the scheme, pharmaceutical companies are asked to ensure they
have an additional six weeks supply of medicines in the UK on top of their own normal
stock levels. This is the current planning assumption but will be subject to revision in light
of future developments. The scheme also includes separate arrangements for the air
freight of medicines with short shelf-lives, such as medical radioisotopes. The UK
Government is working closely with companies who provide medicinesin the UK to ensure
patients continue to get the medicines they need. On the basis of the work they have
undertaken, the UK Government are confident that supplies of medicines to patients can
continue unhindered in the event of a no-deal Brexit. The Department of Health and Social
Care has also written to pharmaceutical companies’ and suppliers of medical
devices" asking for their contingency plans and pinpointing where their concerns lie (e.g.

3
Pack Page 35


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/letter-to-the-health-and-care-sector-preparations-for-a-potential-no-deal-brexit
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/letter-to-the-health-and-care-sector-preparations-for-a-potential-no-deal-brexit
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735745/brexit-medicines-letter.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735746/brexit-medical-devices-letter.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735746/brexit-medical-devices-letter.pdf

10.

11.

12

short-life products, warehousing, distribution) in order to focus national-level support
where necessary.

The UK Government published the first tranche of a series of papers setting out how the
UK plans to deal with a range of issues, including health, in the event that we leave the EU
in March 2019 without an agreement. Papers published so far cover:"

e How medicines, medical devices and clinical trials would be regulated

e Submitting regulatory information on medical products

e Batch testing medicines

e Ensuring blood and blood products are safe

e Quality and safety of organs, tissues and cells

e Labelling tobacco products and e-cigarettes.

Following the UK Government announcements, the Deputy Chief Executive — NHS Wales,
Simon Dean, sent a letter (also on 23 August 2018) to all NHS Chief Executives setting out
their applicability in Wales, especially around Continuity of Supply. The NHS in Wales has
been advised that they do not need to take any steps to stockpile additional medicines
beyond their current stock levels and there is no need for clinicians to write longer NHS
prescriptions. Brexit will be a key agenda item for consideration at the next NHS Wales
Executive Board meeting at the end of September.

. The Welsh NHS Confederation will be hosting a Brexit Roundtable Event on 11 September.

Over 25 health and social care organisations have been invited to the Roundtable event
to discuss the key risks for the health and care system in Wales and what action is being
taken to mitigate them. The Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services and the
Minister for Children, Older People and Social Care will be attending the event and we will
keep the Committee informed of any developments.

Brexit Health Alliance and Cavendish Coalition

13.

14.

As an active member of the Brexit Health Alliance" and Cavendish Coalition"" we have
ensured that any briefings produced or any submissions to the UK Government, House of
Lords or Westminster Committees reflect the issues impacting on the health and care
system in Wales.

Since our previous submission to the Committee the Brexit Health Alliance has:
Published a briefing in February: The impact of Brexit: Patient access to medical
research."'

Published a joint briefing with the Faculty of Public Health in June: Protecting the public’s
health across Europe after Brexit.

Responded to the UK Government technical notices on 23 August “Time for planning not
panic, says Brexit Health Alliance after government publishes no-deal guidance”* and
“No-deal guidance only a first step toward assurance for patients” . As highlighted in the
“No-deal” press release the Brexit Health Alliance is calling for “categorical assurance that
patients will continue to get the medicines and treatment they need, no matter what
happens in the negotiations. This guidance is a first step, but only a first step, towards

4
Pack Page 36


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-medicines-medical-devices-and-clinical-trials-would-be-regulated-if-theres-no-brexit-deal
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/submitting-regulatory-information-on-medical-products-if-theres-no-brexit-deal
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/batch-testing-medicines-if-theres-no-brexit-deal
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ensuring-blood-and-blood-products-are-safe-if-theres-no-brexit-deal
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/quality-and-safety-of-organs-tissues-and-cells-if-theres-no-brexit-deal
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/labelling-tobacco-products-and-e-cigarettes-if-theres-no-brexit-deal
http://www.nhsconfed.org/BrexitHealthAlliance
http://www.nhsemployers.org/your-workforce/need-to-know/brexit-and-the-nhs-eu-workforce/the-cavendish-coalition
http://www.nhsconfed.org/-/media/Confederation/Files/Publications/BHA-briefing-patient-access-and-medical-research--FINAL.PDF
http://www.nhsconfed.org/-/media/Confederation/Files/Publications/BHA-briefing-patient-access-and-medical-research--FINAL.PDF
http://www.nhsconfed.org/-/media/Confederation/Files/Brexit-Health-Alliance/Public-health-after-Brexit.pdf
http://www.nhsconfed.org/-/media/Confederation/Files/Brexit-Health-Alliance/Public-health-after-Brexit.pdf
http://www.nhsconfed.org/media-centre/2018/08/time-for-planning-not-panic-says-bha
http://www.nhsconfed.org/media-centre/2018/08/time-for-planning-not-panic-says-bha
http://www.nhsconfed.org/media-centre/2018/08/no-deal-guidance-only-a-first-step-toward-assurance-for-patients

that. The NHS will now want to see more comprehensive operational advice on issues such
as the stockpiling of medicines and equipment, medical research and public health, in time
for them to take robust action locally well before the UK leaves the EU.....Of course the real
prize must be no disruption in supply to or from the UK - it may be acceptable to argue
about delays to some consumer products at the border - it cannot be acceptable when
patient’s lives are put at risk. We cannot afford to get this wrong”.

NHS Workforce updated figure

15. According to the latest figures (June 2018), 1420 individuals directly employed by the NHS
in Wales identified themselves as EU nationals on the Electronic Staff Record. This equates
to 1.6% of the total workforce.X' This is a significant number of trained, qualified and
dedicated staff who could not be replaced in the short term — for example the percentage
of medical and dental professionals working in the Welsh NHS is a higher percentage at

6.1%.
Number of directly | September | % of total | Excluding | June 2018 | % of total | Excluding
employed staff 2016 directly Unknown directly | Unknown
identifying as EU National employed % employed %l

workforce workforce

Add Prof Scientific and 49 1.6% 2.8% 66 2.1% 3.2%
Technic
Additional Clinical 162 0.9% 1.6% 185 1.0% 1.7%
Services
Administrative and 95 0.5% 0.9% 96 0.5% 0.8%
Clerical
Allied Health 110 1.8% 2.9% 124 2.0% 3.1%
Professionals
Estates and Ancillary 104 1.2% 2.1% 110 1.3% 2.3%
Healthcare Scientists 31 1.5% 2.8% 37 1.8% 3.1%
Medical and Dental 410 5.8% 7.1% 434 6.1% 6.9%
Nursing and Midwifery 352 1.4% 2.5% 368 1.4% 2.5%
Registered
NHS Wales 1,313 1.5% 2.5% 1,420 1.6% 2.5%

5
Pack Page 37




Conclusion

16. The Welsh NHS Confederation, on behalf of our members, will continue to highlight the
possible implications of Brexit on NHS Wales with the Welsh Government, Assembly
Members and our stakeholders. In addition, as a member of the Cavendish Coalition and
the Brexit Health Alliance, we will ensure that the impact for Wales is being made clear at
a UK level by highlighting the likely effects on Welsh policy and legislation.

References

"Welsh NHS Confederation Policy Forum, June 2018. The key issues for health and social care organisations as
the UK prepares to leave the European Union.

i Department of Health and Social Care, August 2018. Government’s Preparations for a March 2019 ‘No Deal’
scenario.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735742/
Govt_preparations_for potential no deal - letter to _health and care sector.pdf

i Department of Health and Social Care, August 2018. EU Exit — Human medicines supply in a March 2019 ‘no
deal’ scenario

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/735745/
brexit-medicines-letter.pdf

v Department of Health and Social Care, August 2018. EU Exit — Medical Devices and Clinical Consumables supply
in a March 2019 ‘no deal’ scenario.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735746/
brexit-medical-devices-letter.pdf

v https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/information-for-the-health-and-care-sector-about-planning-for-
a-potential-no-deal-brexit

Vi Brexit Health Alliance, nhsconfed.org/BrexitHealthAlliance

Vi cavendish Coalition, nhsemployers.org/your-workforce/need-to-know/brexit-and-the-nhs-eu-workforce/the-
cavendish-coalition

vii Brexit Health Alliance, February 2018. The impact of Brexit: Patient access to medical research.

* Brexit Health Alliance, June 2018. Protecting the public’s health across Europe after Brexit.

* Brexit Health Alliance, August 2018. Time for planning not panic, says Brexit Health Alliance after government
publishes no-deal guidance.

X Brexit Health Alliance, August 2018. Brexit Health Alliance: No-deal guidance only a first step toward assurance
for patients

Xi This is the number recorded on the Electronic Staff Record as at November 2017. 34,563 individuals nationality
are unknown/ blank therefore the number could be higher.

Xi. Qyer 34,500 people, 38% of the workforce, do not state which nationality they are on the Electronic staff
record.

6
Pack Page 38


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735742/Govt_preparations_for_potential_no_deal_-_letter_to_health_and_care_sector.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735742/Govt_preparations_for_potential_no_deal_-_letter_to_health_and_care_sector.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735745/brexit-medicines-letter.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735745/brexit-medicines-letter.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735746/brexit-medical-devices-letter.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/735746/brexit-medical-devices-letter.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/information-for-the-health-and-care-sector-about-planning-for-a-potential-no-deal-brexit
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/information-for-the-health-and-care-sector-about-planning-for-a-potential-no-deal-brexit
http://www.nhsconfed.org/BrexitHealthAlliance
http://www.nhsemployers.org/your-workforce/need-to-know/brexit-and-the-nhs-eu-workforce/the-cavendish-coalition
http://www.nhsemployers.org/your-workforce/need-to-know/brexit-and-the-nhs-eu-workforce/the-cavendish-coalition

THE WELSH NHS CONFEDERATIC:)N
CONFFEDERASIWN GIG CYMRU o, ,°

The key issues for health and social care
organisations as the UK prepares to leave the
European Union

Health and social care organisations from across Wales have come together through
the Welsh NHS Confederation’s Policy Forum to outline the key issues and priorities
during the Brexit withdrawal process and beyond.

The Policy Forum does not take any stance on the merits or otherwise of Brexit. Its aim is
to make sure that we are in the strongest possible position once the UK leaves the EU, and
to this effect it advocates an implementation period that adequately reflects the time
needed to achieve the following desired outcomes:

o Providing a continued domestic and international pipeline of high calibre professionals
and trainees in health and social care to deliver sustainable NHS, social care, and
independent health services to ensure the best care to our communities and people
who use our services.

. Continued recognition of professional qualifications trained in the EU27 and
mechanisms to alert each other of health and social professionals who are prohibited
or restricted to practice.

o That workers’ employment rights and patients’ rights are protected post Brexit.

. Health and social care organisations across the UK will be able to continue to
participate in EU collaborative programmes and lead and contribute positively to
European Reference Networks and other collaborative EU networks, such as those
which support medical research, post-Brexit.

. Ensuring patients continue to benefit from early access to the wide range of innovative
health technologies available on the EU market and not miss out on the opportunities
offered by participation in EU clinical trials.

o Ensuring regulatory alignment for the benefit of patients and the public’s health, so
that UK patients continue to benefit from early access to the wide range of innovative
health technologies available.

. Preserving reciprocal healthcare arrangements.

o Ensuring robust coordination mechanisms on public health and well-being and
securing the same, or higher, level of safety is guaranteed through domestic
standards and regulations.

o Securing a strong funding commitment to the healthcare sector, promoting solutions
to minimise any potential additional pressures which may result from Brexit, as well as
advocating for any loss of EU funds to be offset by alternative funding.

o Continued engagement between the Welsh Government and the UK Government to
ensure the interest of health and social care sector in Wales are safeguarded during
the withdrawal process and beyond.

Pack Page 39



Providing a continued domestic and international pipeline of high calibre professionals
and trainees in health and social care to deliver sustainable NHS, social care, and
independent health services to ensure the best care to our communities and people who
use our services.

A total exit from the single market, as put forward by the UK Government, will leave the UK
completely free to determine its own policies on immigration, with possibly much greater
implications for health and social care. Under this scenario we believe it is crucial to ensure that
any future UK immigration rules recognise health and social care as a priority sectors for
overseas recruitment, from both within and outside the EU.

According to the latest figures (April 2018), 1,462 individuals directly employed by the NHS in
Wales identified themselves as EU nationals (1.6% of the total workforce) on the Electronic Staff
Record. This might not seem much but it includes a significant number of trained, qualified and
dedicated staff who could not be replaced in the short term e.g. the percentage of medical and
dental professionals working in the Welsh NHS is higher at 6.2%.

Doctors from Europe make a vital contribution to the health services across the UK. Currently in
Wales there are 104 (4%) GPs on the General Medical Council (GMC) register who gained their
primary medical qualification (PMQ) from another country in the EEA. To date, the vote to leave
the EU has not affected overall numbers of non-UK trained doctors registered to work in the UK.

In relation to the wider healthcare workforce there is still a great concern in the lack of robust
data on the social care, independent and third sector workforce and what Brexit will mean for
them. The number of EU nationals working in social care is far greater than NHS staff. Nearly
one in five care workers were born outside of the UK (approximately 266,000 people across the
UK), of whom 28% were born in the EU. However, on the cusp of withdrawal from the EU, there
has been no risk assessments undertaken of the number of EU workers and any vulnerability in
the social care and independent sector. If migrant workers are not able to supplement the social
care workforce the outlook for the sector and the implications for the elderly, the vulnerable, the
disabled, carers and health and social care workers who support them is worrying.

Finally, clarification is required around students and graduates. There were 5,424 EU students
at Welsh universities in 2014/15, equivalent to 4% of the student population. It is unclear
whether student mobility is on the UK Government’s agenda.

Pack Page 40
02 June 2018



Continued recognition of professional qualifications trained in the EU27 and mechanisms
to alert each other of health and social professionals who are prohibited or restricted to
practice.

We want to ensure that EU27 and UK health and social care professionals, and the health and
social care system, continues to benefit from mutually beneficial training and education
opportunities and automatic recognition of their qualifications. We want continued recognition of
professional qualifications of nurses, doctors, dentists, pharmacists, midwives and Allied Health
Professionals trained in the EU27 and the UK before exit day and after the UK’s departure from
the EU.

Under a ‘hard’ Brexit scenario, all provisions deriving from the Recognition of Professional
Qualifications (RPQ) Directive would be stripped out of the Medical Act 1983. As such, the GMC
would be legally required to treat applications received from a doctor who qualified within the
EEA as an International Medical Graduate (IMG). This would have an important operational
impact on the GMC and also places pressures on both applicants and on the Royal Colleges
who work with the GMC to process applications. Importantly, it may also result in a delay of
around 18 months between application and acceptance onto the register, which is likely to
impact on professional mobility and workforce planning. Finally, the Clinical Assessment
capacity, the GMCs Professional and Linguistic Assessments Board test (PLAB), is already at
full capacity and would find it difficult to cope if they had to include EEA doctors as well.

We also need to agree a way forward on simplifying the movement of professionals, including
improving the checks we can put in place to ensure all professionals practising in the UK meet
the same standards. It is important that the EU27 and UK competent authorities continue to use
the mechanism through the Internal Market Information (IMI) System to alert each other of
health professionals who are prohibited or restricted to practice.

The GMC has led the way in committing itself to international information sharing. As part of
this, the GMC led the campaign for the introduction of a legal duty at European level to share
fithess to practise alerts using the European Commission’s IMI system. This came into force in
January 2016. Participation in this system is contingent on single market membership. A ‘hard’
Brexit will result in the UK’s removal from the system. The GMC will need to reach a decision on
how they share information with European regulators and how they obtain similar information in
return. This is particularly important as European regulators will continue to have access to the
IMI system and may be unwilling to establish a separate system solely for UK health
professional regulators.

Pack Page 41

03 June 2018



That workers’ employment rights and patients’ rights are protected post Brexit.

A substantial proportion of UK employment law originates from the EU and provides important
protections for social care and health staff. The UK Government has already stated its intention
to protect workers’ rights after Brexit and we very much welcome this.

The following are some areas that impact on health and social care:

The European Working Time Directive outlines the number of hours an employee can
work before taking a break and how many hours can be worked in a week. This is crucial
for health and social care staff. Any legislation developed to replace this must not put
pressure on employers to force workers into working longer hours.

The Directive on measures to improve safety and health at work encourages
improvements in occupational health and safety in all sectors of activity, both public and
private; promotes workers' rights to make proposals relating to health and safety, to appeal
to the competent authority and to stop work in the event of serious danger; and seeks to
adequately protect workers and ensure that they return home in good health at the end of
the working day.

The prevention from sharp injuries in the hospital and healthcare sector Directive
regulates the prevention of sharps injuries, for example injuries caused by needlesticks.
Sharps injuries are especially prevalent in healthcare settings and are a major hazard and
cause of sickness absence in the healthcare sector worldwide. Workers who have suffered
a sharps injury can experience anxiety and distress and can, in the most serious cases,
result in infection with blood-borne pathogens such as HIV or hepatitis B or C.

The manual handling of loads Directive lays down minimum health and safety
requirements for the manual handling where there is a risk particularly of back injury to
workers, for example the implementation of hoists and other lifting equipment for health
and social care staff. The Directive reduces the risks of musculoskeletal disorder, which is
particularly prevalent in the nursing workforce and the main cause of sickness absence in
the sector.

The Charter of Fundamental Rights brings together all the personal, civic, political,
economic and social rights enjoyed by people within the EU. The charter contains rights
and freedoms under six titles, including Article 3 which protects the right to and respect for
physical and mental integrity, there must be free and informed consent from people and
prohibiting making the human body as a source of financial gain.

Article 19 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union provides protection
to combat discrimination based on sex, racial or ethnic origin, religion or belief, disability,
age or sexual orientation.

Changes to workers’ rights could result in health and social care staff working longer hours,
exacerbating the pressures they are under, could lead to increase sickness and potentially
posing risks to patient safety. In addition, without specific legal protection for patients and
service users there is a risk that vulnerable people could lose out.

04

Pack Page 42
June 2018



Health and social care organisations across the UK will be able to continue to participate
in EU collaborative programmes and lead and contribute positively to European
Reference Networks and other collaborative EU networks, such as those which support
medical research, post-Brexit.

Through co-operation spanning decades, European nations have created a world-leading
location for research and innovation, including a world-class funding agency, the European
Research Council (ERC), which has invested in unique research facilities, including CERN (the
European Organization for Nuclear Research) and the European Laboratory of Molecular
Biology. Clinical research and innovation are key components of health and social care activity
across the UK and healthcare organisations have a long tradition of EU collaborative research.
The EU enables medical research collaboration by supporting the sharing of research staff and
expertise, cross border trials, and the development of research facilities. The EU provides
funding through programmes such Horizon 2020 and the European Investment Bank has
invested in UK research facilities, including in Swansea University and Bangor University.

Between 2008 and 2013, the UK received €8.8 billion of EU science funding. Access to funding
and the formation of strategic partnerships are vital to the progression of medical research, but
without access to EU funding and collaborative projects, Welsh science excellence risks falling
behind, and organisations including the NHS will become less attractive for professionals
wanting to undertake research.

We welcome the UK Government’s commitment to underwrite funding beyond the date the UK
leaves the EU for Horizon 2020 projects approved while the UK is an EU member. However, the
future beyond 2020 is uncertain. The joint report from the EU and UK Brexit negotiators in
December 2017 stated the UK “may wish to participate in some Union budgetary programmes
of the new MFF (Multiannual Financial Framework) post-2020 as a non-Member State”. Access
to EU research and development funding could be retained, for example, through the UK
gaining “associate member” status for Horizon 2020’s successor — Horizon Europe (as achieved
by Switzerland and Israel for Horizon 2020). This would also allow UK-based academics to lead
and participate in EU-wide collaborations. The UK will not be able to sign an association
agreement for Horizon Europe until the programme has been legislated, probably in late 2020.
Given that the Brexit transition period ends on 31 December 2020 and the new framework
programme is due to begin the day afterwards, timing is clearly critical if a smooth transition is to
be ensured.

The UK has one of the strongest science bases of all European countries. With this in mind, we
welcome the UK government’s intention to continue a strong collaboration with European
partners in science and innovation. For health research in particular, this would mean securing
that UK patients, the public and organisations can take part in pan-European research,
innovation networks and clinical trials and that these can be supported through UK involvement
in EU funding programmes and the EU Health programme.

The UK should continue to contribute knowledge to — and take the lead in — European
Reference Networks. The Network is a virtual space for collaboration across the EU on rare
diseases. This will ensure that patients in the UK and across Europe have access to the best
treatment and knowledge available and that clinicians are supported in developing their
knowledge of rare diseases.

Finally, we recommend that the UK continues to harmonise its data protection regulations with
Europe. Data sharing between Europe and the UK is essential for public health, medical
research and ensuring patient safety. The UK must retain the General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR) because it provides important protections for individuals, while also allowing
data to be shared within the EU.

Pack Page 43
05 June 2018



Ensuring patients continue to benefit from early access to the wide range of innovative
health technologies available on the EU market and not miss out on the opportunities
offered by participation in EU clinical trials.

The UK is currently part of the EU’s European Medicines Agency (EMA) network, which
encompasses more than 500 million people. The EMA ensures that medicines are safe,
effective and of a high quality. The EMA supports cross-border collaboration and provides a
common framework for assessing and monitoring drug safety and efficacy, and provides timely
access to new therapies and technologies. The EMA represents 25% of the global
pharmaceutical sales market, compared to the UK’s 3% share in isolation. If the UK leaves the
EMA arrangements and develops its own drug approval system, it may lose its ‘tier 1’ status,
which would lead to:

o Delayed access (potentially up to 12 to 24 months) to new medicines and medical devices.
For example, in Switzerland and Canada, which have separate approval systems,
medicines typically reach the market six months later than in the EU;

o Weakened post-approval regulation and pharmacovigilance; and

o Loss of expertise.

It is therefore crucial that any potential risks are minimised and that the UK’s Medicines and
Healthcare products Regulatory Agency (MHRA) is still able to retain it’s valuable role as an
authority in the field, protecting and supporting innovation through scientific research and
development. The relocation of the EMA will have a considerable impact, not only because it is
moving headquarters and personnel, but also because the relationship with the UK MHRA will
change. The UK’s MHRA is a significant contributor to EU regulatory systems and processes,
both for medicines and medical technologies. This includes scientific and clinical assessments,
surveillance and supervision of products, and reporting of adverse events. Delay and expense in
accessing treatments could be caused by a departure from the EU that separates the MHRA
from the close working relationship it maintains with the EMA, in terms of vigilance, licencing,
assessing medicinal products, offering scientific support and providing regulatory advice.

Finally, it is important that NHS patients do not miss out on the opportunities offered by
participation in EU clinical trials. We want to ensure multi-country clinical trials can continue post
Brexit, particularly for rare diseases and personalised medicine, as multi-country trials provide
researchers with access to the large populations required. Currently, there are 1,500 clinical
trials being conducted in multiple EU member states that have a UK-based sponsor, and over
half of these trials are scheduled to continue beyond March 2019. The UK has the highest
number of phase I clinical trials (those testing a new drug or treatment for the first time) in the
EU and the second highest number of phase Il and phase Il clinical trials. It also has the
highest number of trials across the EU for both rare and childhood diseases, many of which are
scheduled to continue beyond March 2019. Clinical trials for new drugs are currently carried out
on a national level but subject to EU regulations, including for their registration. The revised EU
clinical trials Directive, due to take effect in 2019, will harmonise arrangements across the EU
with the aim of creating a single-entry point for companies that wish to carry out trials of new
drugs on participants in different countries. Some in the pharmaceutical industry have
expressed concern that leaving the EU could result in the UK losing out on some trials that
might otherwise benefit patients, as the UK would no longer be part of this harmonised
procedure.

Pack Page 44
06 June 2018



Ensuring regulatory alignment for the benefit of patients and the public’s health, so that
UK patients continue to benefit from early access to the wide range of innovative health
technologies available.

Over 2,600 medicinal products have some stage of manufacture based in the UK. This equates,
to 45 million patient packs of medicines supplied from the UK to other EU-27/EEA countries
every month. Over 37 million patient packs of medicines come the other way, supplied from the
EU-27/EEA to the UK. Securing continued cooperation and mutual recognition between the EU
and UK regarding the authorisation, conformity assessments, testing and surveillance of
medicines and medical technologies should be a priority outcome of the negotiations. If the UK
establishes a separate regulatory framework, in order to continue to trade with the EU block of
countries, we would still need to abide by their principles. This would impact all those involved in
innovative health technologies, the pharmaceutical industry, medical devices and medical
technology manufacturers, distributors, suppliers, researchers, NHS Wales and lastly, but most
importantly, patients. In Wales, it would hurt the ambition to link the health and wealth of the
nation. According to the Welsh Government website, the Life Sciences sector in Wales employs
around 11,000 people in over 350 companies.

To avoid dangerous delays for patients and an impact on this important health / economic
sector, all products used in healthcare should be exempt from any new customs, tariff or VAT
arrangements, and afforded pre-shipping clearance and fast-track access across any new EU /
UK borders.

Pack Page 45
07 June 2018



Preserving reciprocal healthcare arrangements.

The current arrangements on reciprocal healthcare work well for the mutual benefit of UK and
EU citizens. We support the UK Government proposal to continue reciprocal healthcare
arrangements both for UK citizens currently living in the EU, and vice-versa, after the UK has
left the EU. They give peace of mind to travellers who know that if they carry a European Health
Insurance Card (EHIC) they will be covered for urgent treatment, regardless of any pre-existing
conditions, and to expatriates who can access healthcare in their country of residence. The
system is also relatively simple for healthcare systems to administer.

Many UK citizens currently rely on the EHIC exclusively, even though it may not cover all costs
(e.g. repatriation). Loss of access to the card would mean all citizens travelling across the UK/
EU border having to take out private medical insurance, as they do now e.g. for visiting the
USA. Some people with long term conditions/poor health/disabilities would be unable to afford
the cost of private insurance and therefore effectively be unable to travel. Those who travel
uninsured and need urgent/emergency care could be faced with large bills.

There are about 53 million visits made to the EU from the UK each year, and 25 million visits
from the EU to the UK. Only around 1 per cent of these visits results in an EHIC claim. Every
year the UK recoups about £70 million from other EU countries and spends about £150 million
on EHIC reimbursements, plus the cost (approximately £500 million a year) of reimbursing other
Member States for healthcare provided to British pensioners.

The current schemes also work very well for UK or EU citizens who need planned treatment in
another EU country because, for example, the relevant expertise or equipment is not available
in the country in which they reside. This provision is especially valuable for patients with rare
diseases (there may be only a few centres of excellence in the EU where specialist treatment
can be provided) or in border situations where the nearest suitable facilities may be in a different
Member State.

Pensioners residing abroad currently benefiting from “S1” arrangements would, if allowed to
stay in the host country after Brexit, have to make arrangements in the country in which they
reside for healthcare insurance cover, in order to access local services. This could be expensive
and bureaucratic. There are far more British pensioners living in the EU 27 countries than vice-
versa (190,000 as opposed to 5,800) who have the right to receive healthcare on the same
terms as the local population thanks to EU reciprocal healthcare arrangements. If these
arrangements were to be discontinued, it is reasonable to assume that a proportion of these
pensioners, many of whom may have chronic conditions or more complex healthcare needs
than younger citizens of working age, would return to the UK and that planning and funding
provisions would have to be made for them in the UK’s health and care system.

Another implication for healthcare providers relates to the administrative and resource burden
that new arrangements could bring. Managing access to health services by non-EU citizens is
bureaucratically more burdensome than managing access for EU nationals currently, as they
are covered by reciprocal arrangements that regulate the administrative procedures and
payment flows between countries.

Pack Page 46
08 June 2018



Ensuring robust co-ordination mechanisms on public health and well-being and securing
the same, or higher, level of safety is guaranteed through domestic standards and
regulations.

The EU has a significant impact on health and well-being in Wales, both directly and indirectly.
Examples include supporting co-operation to protect against current and emerging infectious
diseases, legislation to support food quality and environmental improvements, social policy and
enabling research and development. The health of citizens across Europe, including the UK,
needs to be protected from pan-European. Tackling these health risks effectively requires joined
-up policies and action, and the UK and EU need to reach agreement on the best way of
collaborating to fight these public health risks after the UK leaves the EU.

The EU has several agencies that are directly relevant to health and well-being these are the:
European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control (ECDC);

European Food Safety Authority (EFSA);

European Medicines Agency (EMA);

European Food and Veterinary Office (EFVO);

European Agency for Health and Safety at Work (EU-OSHA); and

European Monitoring Centre for Drugs and Drug Addiction (EMCDDA).

These agencies undertake monitoring, surveillance, trends analysis and risk assessments, as
well as providing alerts to government and stakeholders. These agencies also support shared
learning across borders and provide a platform for co-ordinated responses to global threats.

A significant proportion of the domestic legislation in public health and consumer protection

originates from the EU, including:

. Environmental Protection; A range of EU policies related to water, waste, air pollution
and climate change and have been transposed and implemented in the UK.

. Food Standards; EU law on nutrition and food (Food Information for Consumers
Regulation) embed the principles of food law.

. Health & nutrition; Since 2007, EU institutions have established rules on both health and
nutrition claims that allow businesses to demonstrate potential benefits of a particular
produce.

. Tobacco and Alcohol; The EU has enabled a cross-border approach to anti-smoking
measures through the Tobacco Products Directive; and

. Cost and availability of fresh food: Projections predict less availability and higher costs
of fruit and vegetables. Currently 30% of the UK’s food is imported from the EU.

Finally, to ensure that public health for all EU and UK citizens is maintained post-Brexit, it is key
that there is strong coordination between the EU and UK to deal with pandemics, as well as
other communicable diseases such as antimicrobial resistance, influenza outbreaks and
infectious diseases. We must also seek the highest possible level of co-ordination on health
promotion and disease prevention programmes.

Any reduced level of collaboration with the European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control
(ECDC) could lead to delays in reporting and disease tracking, hampering outbreak response. It
would also reduce the effectiveness of pandemic preparedness planning and co-ordinating
appropriate responses.

We recommend that the UK Government negotiate an agreement to continue to share
information, evidence and planning for pandemic preparedness with ECDC. Maintaining the
fullest possible access to the ECDC’s emergency preparedness systems would enable the UK
to continue sharing data and evidence with the EU, and vice versa, to protect its citizens and
ensure that preparedness is co-ordinated.

Pack Page 47
09 June 2018



Securing a strong funding commitment to the healthcare sector, promoting solutions to
minimise any potential additional pressures which may result from Brexit, as well as
advocating for any loss of EU funds to be offset by alternative funding.

The Health Foundation has previously estimated that the NHS budget in England could be £2.8
billion lower than currently planned by 2019-20. In the longer term, the analysis concludes that
the NHS funding shortfall could be at least £19 billion by 2030-31- equivalent to £365 million a
week — assuming the UK is able to join the European Economic Area. If this is not the case, the
shortfall will potentially be as high as £28 billion — which is £540 million a week. The
repercussions will be felt by NHS Wales and any decline in the economy will mean that
socioeconomic inequalities increase, with a likely increase in health inequalities, and will impact
on the most vulnerable in society, including at risk groups and people with disabilities.

In addition to the impact on the economy, EU structural funds have supported initiatives to close
inequalities in health, tackle poverty and contribute to the promotion of well-being of Welsh for
its citizens. Wales is home to some of the poorest regions in the EU, which is why it receives a
disproportionately larger amount of EU funding compared with other parts of the UK. Wales is a
net beneficiary of the EU, unlike other areas of the UK, receiving £245 million more from the EU
than it pays in, with the net benefit from the EU equating to around £79 per head in 2014 (this
compares with a net contribution of £151 per head for the UK as a whole). Any loss of funding
could negatively impact on well-being (and inequalities) in Wales.

There is currently a great deal of uncertainty as to the availability of future replacement EU
funding in Wales. EU funding that is currently administered on a Welsh level, which will cease
upon our departure from the EU, include: European Structural Funds; Rural Development
Programme & CAP Pillar 1 support; and the Ireland Wales Cross Border Programme (jointly
with Ireland). Local Government has been a key partner in delivering EU Funding in Wales over
several programming periods. Local Government plays a key role both in the delivery of EU
funded activity within localities and regions through the direct delivery of capital and revenue
schemes that supporting getting people back into employment. Local Authorities also play a
strategic role in the delivery of these programmes on a local level. A key priority for Wales is to
understand the rules of engagement for accessing any replacement funding after Brexit.

Finally, the period of uncertainty related to Brexit is likely to impact the mental health and well-
being of the population and may disproportionately affect specific groups, such as farming
communities, lower socio-economic groups and people with disabilities. We believe that it is
important to understand the impacts on health and well-being during negotiation and transition.

Pack Page 48

10 June 2018



Continued engagement between the Welsh Government and the UK Government to
ensure the interest of health and social care sector in Wales are safeguarded during the
withdrawal process and beyond.

Policy Forum members will continue to highlight the possible implications for the NHS Wales of
the UK exiting the EU with the Welsh Government and Assembly Members, as well as the UK
Government.

A number of Policy Forum members are UK wide organisations so have been speaking directly
with the Department of Health in England, the Scottish Parliament and with colleagues in
Norther Ireland regarding the border issue. In addition a number of organisations are members
of the Brexit Health Alliance and Cavendish Coalition. Through these groups we have
ensured that any briefings produced or any submissions to the UK Government, House of Lords
or Westminster Committees reflect the issues impacting on the health and care system in
Wales.

The Brexit Health Alliance brings together the NHS, medical research, industry, patients and
public health organisations. The Alliance seeks to make sure that healthcare research, access
to technologies and treatment of patients are given the prominence and attention they deserve
during the Brexit negotiations, and will argue that it is in both Europe and the UK’s interests to
maintain co-operation in research and in handling public health issues.

The Cavendish Coalition is a group of health and social care organisations united in their
commitment to provide the best care to their communities, patients and residents. The Coalition
is committed to working together to ensure a continued domestic and international pipeline of
high calibre professionals and trainees in health and social care.

Pack Page 49

11 June 2018


http://www.nhsconfed.org/BrexitHealthAlliance
http://www.nhsemployers.org/your-workforce/need-to-know/brexit-and-the-nhs-eu-workforce/the-cavendish-coalition

The following organisations have endorsed this

r N

AIzhelmer’s

ACADEMI COLEGAU MEDDYGOL

ACADEMY OF MEDICAL
ROYAL COLLEGES WALES

ab 1 SOClet BRENHINOL CYMRU
Cymﬁﬂgm The Association
Bringing medicines to life : Ernll){:dbiggﬁ::t'a Of U K D | et|t| ans
Dod a meddyginiaeth i fywyd Dementia
Cymru | Wales
British Heart @ BMA
B Asw Foundation
Cymru
Cymru Cymru Wales

BRITISH
‘ LV EE R J
iT BOWEL LRSS gHARTESRgDSOCIETY
CANCER F PHYSIOTHERAPY

CYMDEITHAS SIARTREDIG
FFISIOTHERAPI

Children in Wales MACMILLAN

CANCER SUPPORT
¢ Plant yng Nghymru
CYMORTH CANSER

MACMILLAN

Yn cefnogi pobl

RNIB a cholled golwg
Cymru Supporting people

with sight loss

a
i
0 Aﬂ‘" !
7'

ol. m!
M

Royal College of
General Practitioners
53 ] Coleg Brenhinol
-- ROYAL CYMDEITHAS Medd Tisis]
& PHARMACEUTICAL FFERYLLOL eddygon leulu

SOCIETY FRENHINOL

Waes € Royal College
Y of Physicians

THE ROYAL COLLEGE .0“.
l OF SURGEONS OF Pack Page 50 THE WELSH NHS CONFEDERATION :-
EDINBURGH CONFFEDERASIWN GIG CYMRU ‘s,

Coleg Brenhinol
y Meddygon (Cymru)




Agenda ltem 2.5

R|FIG

4 September 2018 = =
Rail Freight Group

7 Bury Place
London WC1A 2LA

T +44 (0)203 116 0007
F +44 (0)203 116 0008
W www.rfg.org.uk

David Rees, Esq, AM,

Chair,

External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee,

National Assembly for Wales, By post and by e-mail to:
Cardiff Bay, Yan.Thomas@assembly.wales
CARDIFF,

CF99 1INA.

Dear Mr Rees,

Thank you for your letter of 31 July asking whether the Rail Freight Group wishes, in the
light of the evolving situation, to add to the written and oral evidence we submitted in 2017
to the Committee’s inquiry into the implications of Brexit for Welsh ports.

In our written evidence we concentrated on activities on the port estates and on land-side
connectivity with those ports and these remain important concerns to our members. We also
stressed that whatever customs arrangements were put in place, it was essential that they were
frictionless to ensure port operations were not constrained and transport operators were not
adversely affected by delays and disruption.

In this context we welcome the current proposals by the UK Government for a Facilitated
Customs Arrangement and hope that agreement can be reached and the necessary procedures
speedily implemented. In particular, it is important that “Landbridge” traffic between Ireland,
the UK and Europe, (another area of concern featured in our 2017 submission) continues to
be facilitated in order to sustain throughput (and, hopefully, growth) at the major Welsh Ferry
Ports.

If you require any clarification or additional information, please do not hesitate to get in
touch.

Yours sincerely,

Robin C Smitiv

Pack Page 51



Robin C Smith
Welsh Representative
Rail Freight Group.

e-mail: robincsmith@btinternet.com

Mobile: 07968 488905

Home Address (and for correspondence):
5, Holywell Road East,

Abergavenny,

Monmouthshire,

NP7 5LW.

Pack Page 52


mailto:robincsmith@btinternet.com

Agenda ltem 2.6

External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee’s inquiry:
the implications of Brexit for Welsh ports

Port of Milford Haven’s submission

Summary

1. Asone of the gateway ports to the Republic of Ireland and the largest energy,
engineering and fisheries cluster in the UK, the Port of Milford Haven (“the Port”)
welcomes the opportunity to contribute to the work of the External Affairs and
Additional Legislation Committee on Brexit and trade.

2. The Port is working with all frontier agencies, UK Government departments and the
Border Planning Group to ensure existing and future operations are fit-for-purpose
following Brexit. Milford Haven welcomes the Government's roll out of the new
Customs Declaration System and commitment to maintain British membership of the
Common Transit Convention.

3.  Alongside our trade association, the British Ports Association (“the BPA”), we welcome
the underlying objectives of the UK-EU Future Relationship White Paper: maintaining
our border fluidity from day one, the UK constitutional integrity, and security
partnership. We believe that the Customs Facilitated Partnership could be made to
work, if the will on both sides was in place.

4, The Port’s view of Brexit is mixed. We see both business opportunity and potential
disruption, but this will be entirely shaped by the EU-UK end state relationship.

5. The opportunities centre on greater landside supply chain value added activity in
fisheries and industrial processing, while potential frontier disruption (which is unlikely
to be caused by UK authorities) could negatively impact goods (and people) flowing
through our ferry terminal — predominantly accompanied ro-ro traffic and passengers —
(see below) at Pembroke Dock.

6.  The possibility of delays in loading and unloading ferries, longer check-in and
processing times, traffic instead using ports in England and Scotland to reach Ireland
through Northern Ireland, or bypassing the UK altogether®, will have an impact on the
west Wales economy.

7. The latter point relates to the European Commission recent proposal to revise the
'‘North Sea-Mediterranean transport corridor' — which currently links Ireland with the
UK, Benelux and France — to be amended to incorporate direct shipping connections
between Dublin and Cork and ports such as Zeebrugge, Antwerp and Rotterdam i.e.
offering financial incentives to bypass the British land bridge and Welsh ro-ro ports to
Ireland.

8. In a letter to the EU's transport commissioner, the French transport minister, Elisabeth
Borne, recently wrote: 'France and Ireland maintain important trade channels, both
overland via Britain and via direct maritime routes... Surprisingly, the Commission
proposal in no way takes this into account. This proposal therefore is not acceptable to
France.' The Port supports this position.

! https://ec.europa.eufinfo/law/better-regulation/initiatives_en

Pack Page 53



Port of Milford Haven overview

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

The Port of Milford Haven is Wales’ largest port and Britain’s largest energy port. In
2017, approximately 32.1 million tonnes of cargo passed through the Port, comprising
principally crude oil, fuel products and liquefied natural gas. A great deal of the land
around the Port is designated as Haven Waterway Enterprise Zone.

The Port also owns and operates south Wales’ largest ferry port — Pembroke Dock
Ferry Terminal — handling around 70,000 freight units and 350,000 passenger
movements each year. This service — Pembroke Dock to Rosslare — is operated by
Irish Ferries.

The Haven Waterway constitutes the UK’s single largest cluster of energy related
businesses, handling or processing approximately 20% of the UK’s energy
requirements and supporting 5,000 jobs in Wales.

The Port also owns Pembroke Port where dry bulk, general and specialist and project
cargo is handled, and Milford Waterfront which is the central location on the Milford
Haven Waterway for leisure, tourism and cruise.

Pembroke Dock Marine — the Port is partnering with other key organisations to
develop a well-resourced base for wave, tidal and floating wind renewable energy
developers. The aim is to attract developers who are leading a rapidly growing global
industry to carry out comprehensive early stage fabrication and development of marine
renewable energy devices in Pembrokeshire. It will be a centre for marine renewable
engineering development, with value to other industries, and is a key project within the
Swansea Bay City Region Deal expected to generate over £60m of investment.

Milford Waterfront development — a 466,000 sq. ft. low-carbon, smart-living leisure,
retail and tourism project under development. It will use advanced digital technology to
create an exciting, next generation leisure and tourism experience.

Building on Milford Fish Docks’ status as the largest fishing port in Wales, the Milford
Waterfront aims to act as a hub for an efficient fishing and aquaculture industry
supporting the growth of an indigenous fishing fleet and the economy of coastal
communities.

Brexit and Freight

The Brexit negotiations have highlighted that the continued growth of services,
commerce and manufacturing is inter-dependent.

Ports are a nexus of transport connections where manufacturers want to be located
and where value added activity occurs. The significant economic clusters that have
built up around ports’ natural capital — sheltered, deep water with good onward access
— has allowed multi-national and regional businesses to thrive and have driven
economic growth.

The Milford Haven Waterway is at the heart of one of the largest industrial clusters in
Wales, where major added value takes place across the oil and gas, marine
engineering and fishing sectors, and equipment, skills and people are utilised
collectively.

It is a fact that the level of previous investment activity at Milford Haven has been
driven by three factors:

Pack Page 54



- exceptional depth of water — over 17m at all states of tide — permitting operational
scale and lower cost/lower carbon impact logistics

- quick access to Atlantic trade routes unimpeded by locks

- established and new infrastructure links (5GW electrical grid capacity, gas and fuel
pipelines, and rail access).

A Sustainable Development Charter: “Port Development and Enterprise Zone”

18. The Port believes there is an opportunity to “super-charge” the nation’s enterprise
zones, in line with the UK Government’s Industrial Strategy or the Welsh
Government’s Economic Action Plan, and in readiness for a post-Brexit business
environment. This proposal dovetails with the BPA’s latest policy pamphlet®, which
commits its members, including ourselves, to strong environmental stewardship, while
supporting their licence to operate within their ‘zone’.

19. Milford Haven would like to see ports, airports and other major economic centres
prioritised as economic zones — providing leadership and a regulatory environment
which makes it easy for businesses to operate, invest and employ. This would boost
regional development, business growth, and intra- and international trade.

20. With a greatly strengthened presumption in favour of development, the UK and Welsh
governments could lower development risk, by shortening development time frames
and lowering project costs.

21. The Port believes that the private and public sectors must be proactive to ensure
Wales remains an attractive place to do business. During a period of public policy
uncertainty, maintaining business confidence through a competitive regulatory and
fiscal system is key.

22. Within super-charged zones, trade and industrial activity could be incentivised by
favourable business, tax and planning regime. For the Port — and others —
opportunities centre on maximising the value from existing economic clusters —
energy, engineering and fishing — particularly in manufacturing and processing.

23. Manufacturers want to be located at the nexus of transport routes. Ports and airports
thrive and drive economic growth by being able to respond rapidly to market need.

Harnessing Our Fisheries

24. Regaining control of access and the management of our fishing resources will present
the possibility to incrementally grow the domestic fishing fleet (10m+ vessels), increase
domestic fish landings and facilitate more processing at British ports to the benefit of
coastal communities.

25. The Port would like to see positive fiscal and funding policies to facilitate the growth of
the domestic market, potentially through a reformed successor to the European
Maritime and Fisheries Fund, coupled with other grant allocations and licensing

2 https://www.britishports.org.uk/system/files/documents/british_ports_sustainable_development_resolution.pdf

Pack Page 55



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

measures.

Tariff-free access to EU markets — and vice versa — is essential and of utmost
importance. Norway and Iceland manage their own fisheries, have healthy fish stocks
and trade with the EU. We would like to see a similar arrangement for the UK.

We believe the Welsh Government is best place to react to local need and, therefore,
call for fisheries to remain a devolved matter. EU-UK trading and regulatory end state

Given the unknown EU-UK trading and regulatory end state, and guided by the
principle that goods (and people) must be allowed to flow and grow, the Port’s position
on Brexit and observations about our facilities are as follows:

- the border must be maintained as a tax point, rather than a check point

- there is limited space at Pembroke Dock Ferry Terminal for additional frontier checks
or marshalling. Checks should continue to be risk based and of no greater impact
than competing modes of transport

- the Common Travel Area must be maintained
- continued membership of the Common Transit Convention is essential

- supportive of a pragmatic deal on both customs and regulatory recognition that
allows businesses to get their goods across borders as quickly as possible

- regulatory equivalence or mutual recognition of animal and plant health standards is
key. Currently, 75% of customs interventions are undertaken at the border on non-EU
trade in goods are for animal and plant product inspections any new multi-agency
border facilities must be funded by the UK and/or Welsh governments

- support for the repeal of the inappropriate Port Services Regulation at the earliest
possible opportunity

- in an ever increasingly competitive global market place, ‘trade’ benefits should be
more strongly incorporated into public infrastructure assessments, consenting and
licensing decisions.

Conclusion

Border processes will evolve, trade flows will adapt, but the outcome must be “as
frictionless as possible”.

UK ports — including the Port of Milford Haven — are nationally and regionally
significant in their own right. Their continued success is essential to the functioning of
the British economy.

With two thirds of Irish exports going through English and Welsh ports, via the UK land
bridge, to the Channel ports and onwards to the continent, any establishment of an
island of Ireland regulatory system that diverges from the rest of the UK —i.e. a hard
border in the Irish Sea — would be deeply unhelpful to our operations.

Whether it’'s the UK Government’s Industrial Strategy or the Welsh Government’s
Economic Action Plan, providing the right policy, regulatory and fiscal conditions for

Pack Page 56



33.

34.

35.

these clusters to grow and evolve relatively unfettered is crucial to the success of the
British (and European) economy in the post-Brexit years ahead.

The conditions in the vicinity of major ports which offer unique characteristics and
cannot be relocated need to be pro-development and have shorter decision-making
time frames which would lower development risk and, therefore, drive up investment-
led business growth. This is crucial when port operators need to be able respond
nimbly to market opportunities that may arise from new trading relationships or
changes in trade patterns following Brexit.

The Port is working with all frontier agencies, UK Government departments and the
Border Planning Group to make sure their facilities and our port and I.T. infrastructure
are in place to ensure that our current and future customers are able to move goods
in-and-out of the UK as seamlessly as possible.

Opportunities exist, but without visible policy, regulatory and political support, global
capital will move to a more receptive location.

Pack Page 57



mddi ol ei British Medical Association
Ag e n d l . Fifth Floor
2 Pentir Caspian 2 Caspian Point

Ffordd Caspian Caspian Way

Bae Caerdydd Cardiff Bay

Caerdydd Cardiff

CF10 4DQ CF104DQ

Ffén/Tel 029 2047 4608 Cymru wales

Ffacs/Fax 029 2047 4600
Ebost/Email lanstey@bma.org.uk

FOLLOW-UP INQUIRY INTO HOW THE WELSH GOVERNMENT IS PREPARING FOR BREXIT —
HEALTH AND MEDICINES

Inquiry by the National Assembly for External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee

Response from BMA Cymru Wales

07 September 2018

INTRODUCTION

BMA Cymru Wales welcomes the opportunity to provide a response to the follow-up inquiry by the
National Assembly for Wales External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee into how the Welsh
Government is preparing for Brexit in the sphere of health and medicines.

The BMA is a professional association and trade union representing and negotiating on behalf of all
doctors and medical students in the UK. It is a leading voice advocating for outstanding health care and a
healthy population. It is an association providing members with excellent individual services and support
throughout their lives.

RESPONSE

At our annual representative meeting in June 2018, doctors made clear their worries that Brexit poses a
major threat to the NHS and the nation’s health. Given what is now known about the potential impact of
Brexit on the NHS and the dangers a ‘no deal’ Brexit presents for the NHS, the BMA voted to change our
policy to opposition to Brexit and to support the public having a final say on the Brexit deal.

The BMA has published a series of briefings, which outline our policy positions on a range of key issues
relating to the impact of Brexit on the UK healthcare system. These briefings can be read here.

BMA Cymru Wales continues to work with other organisations to highlight the dangers of a ‘no deal’
Brexit and engage and raise concerns with the Welsh Government.

Cyfarwyddwr Cenedlaethol (Cymru)/National director (Wales):
Rachel Podolak

Cofrestrwyd yn Gwmni Cyfyngedig trwy Warant. Rhif Cofrestredig: 8848 Lloegr
Swyddfa gofrestredig: BMA House, Tavistock Square, Llundain, WC1H 9JP.

Rhestrwyd yn Undeb Llafur o dan Ddeddf Undebau Llafur a Chysylltiadau Llafur 1974.
Registered as a Company limited by Guarantee. Registered No. 8848 England.
Registered office: BMA House, Tavistock Square, London, WC1H 9JP.

Listed as a Trade Union under the Trade Union and Labour Relations Act 1974.

J

o

Y BUDDSODDWYR | INVESTORS Y Gymdeithas Feddygol Brydeinig
\

d\’ MEWN POBL IN PEOPLE British Medical Association
€ Bma.org.uk/wales

Y
N

e


https://www.bma.org.uk/collective-voice/influence/europe/brexit/bma-brexit-briefings

BMA

Workforce and future immigration policy

The EU’s principles of freedom of movement and the mutual recognition of professional qualifications
have enabled many health and social care professionals from countries within the EEA (European
Economic Area) to work in the UK. Migration from the EEA and elsewhere provides a range of benefits to
the UK beyond staffing services. Medicine and medical research thrives on the interchange of experience,
knowledge and training across countries and backgrounds. Allowing doctors and medical researchers to
work, train, teach, conduct research and practice in different countries contributes to widening the
understanding of healthcare and advances new breakthroughs in medicine.

EEA doctors play a key role in staffing vital services. In Wales approximately 6.4% (624) of doctors
currently working in the medical workforce are EEA graduates®. There is a very real risk that many EEA
nationals, including highly skilled doctors and medical researchers will choose to leave the UK due to the
ongoing uncertainty in the Brexit negotiations.

We remain deeply concerned that the UK Government is yet to provide detail on a framework for a
future immigration system for managing migration from the EU. A ‘no deal’ scenario will create
uncertainty about the status of future EU nationals wanting to come and work in the Welsh NHS. Any
reduction in the number of doctors migrating to the UK, or an increase in the number leaving the UK
because of Brexit, will have a destabilising effect on the medical workforce, and the staffing of health and
social care services across the UK. This will impact on already over stretched staffing levels on hospital
wards, in GP practices and in community settings across the UK, putting at risk the quality of patient care
and patient safety.

We believe that the Welsh Government should work with the UK Government to ensure free movement
for healthcare and medical research staff; permanent residence for EU doctors and medical researchers
currently based in Wales and the rest of the UK and continued rights for EEA medical students in Wales

to train, work and live in Wales.

Employment rights

The UK’s withdrawal from the European Union will have the potential to significantly affect working
rights for doctors. The EWTD (European Working Time Directive) and the measures which it has
transposed into the UK WTR (Working Time Regulations) — namely the limit of a 48-hour average working
week, rest breaks and statutory paid leave — form key health and safety legislation, which alongside ECJ
judgements (the SiMAP and Jaeger rulings which enshrined the principle of time spent on-call at the
workplace being regarded as work, and other rulings such as those ensuring the correct calculation of
holiday pay) has reduced fatigue amongst doctors and improved the safety of both patients and doctors
in the UK. The EWTD could be repealed following Brexit.

To minimise these potential effects, the Welsh Government should work with the UK Government to
protect and enhance the WTR after the UK’s departure from the EU, maintain their incorporation of the
EWTD. We believe that junior doctors should have protected training time within safe working limits to
avoid tiredness-related accidents.

We also believe that the Welsh Government should work with the UK Government to fully incorporate
the right to equal pay, in Article 157 of the EU Treaty, into UK law.

By adopting this approach, the Welsh Government would strengthen the current arrangements in the
WTR, which allows doctors to opt out of the rules up to a maximum average 56-hour week if they wish
and enables sufficient flexibility as well as ensure that current standards of equality in doctors’
employment are upheld, rather than weakened.

1 GMC (November 2017) Our data about doctors with a European primary medical qualification in 2017.

PaCk Page 59 Page 2 of 3


https://www.gmc-uk.org/about/what-we-do-and-why/data-and-research/research-and-insight-archive/our-data-about-doctors-with-a-european-primary-medical-qualification---part-two

BMA

Health protection

Health protection and security in Wales has been fundamentally shaped by the UK’s membership of the
EU. This includes efforts to combat infectious diseases such as measles and limit the spread of
antimicrobial resistance. Other areas of shared competence include climate change, water, waste and air
pollution and maintaining high food safety standards. It has also included facilitating the sharing of data,
expertise and national strategies for pandemic preparedness planning and response via ECDC (the
European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control).

It is imperative that the Welsh Government urges the UK Government to ensure that there is an

agreement between the UK and EU to continue to share data and emergency preparedness planning in
relation to cross-border threats.

Pack Page 60 Page 3 of 3



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag en d a I te m 4

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 61



Y Gwir Anrh/Rt Hon Carwyn Jones AC/AM
Prif Weinidog Cymru/First Minister of Wales

Llywodraeth Cymru
David Rees AM Welsh Government

Chair of the External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

SeneddEAAL@assmebly.wales

10 September 2018

Dear David

Request for an update on progress with recommendations contained in the report on
‘How the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit?’

I am writing in response to your letter of 19 July, requesting an update on progress with the
recommendations contained in the report “How is the Welsh Government Preparing for
Brexit?”. You expressed a particular interest in specific actions taken in order to fulfil the
Committee’s recommendations, an indication of any additional resources required to prepare
for Brexit and an indication of timescales for completion of any ongoing preparedness work.
Thank you for agreeing to a brief extension, which has allowed me to reflect the latest
developments in my response.

You rightly highlight in your letter the continued lack of certainty about the likely outcome of
negotiations. This is obviously leading to increased speculation that the UK may leave
without securing a deal. It is my view that such an outcome would represent a catastrophic
political failure by the UK Government, which poses very significant threats to the prosperity
and well-being of the people of Wales, and indeed the whole of the UK.

I have repeatedly stressed this point to UK Government, and will continue to do so as we
approach the vital European Council meetings in the autumn. Despite my strong conviction
that a deal must be struck, | recognise that we have a responsibility to prepare for EU exit
without a deal, just as we would prepare for any disaster which it is not in our power to
prevent. But | will not pretend to the UK Government or the public that such an outcome is
simply one of a range of credible alternatives; drifting into, or seeking, a “no deal” should be
unthinkable.

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
Caerdydd - Cardiff 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA YP.PrifWeinidog@llyw.cymru e« ps.firstminister@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni
fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and
corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.

Pack Page 63


mailto:YP.PrifWeinidog@llyw.cymru
mailto:ps.firstminister@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddEAAL@assmebly.wales

Wales cannot prepare for EU exit in isolation; again, a point | have regularly and strenuously
stressed to UK Government. It is imperative that all the administrations across the UK work
collaboratively to plan how to mitigate the most serious effects of a breakdown in the
negotiations between the UK and the EU27. And that must start with the UK Government
working with us as a partner in government, engaging openly with us and sharing
information with us in a constructive matter. For too long and too often, they have engaged
with us too little and too late on issues. Recently, we have seen encouraging signs of
improved engagement in response to our pressure but there is much, much more they
should do.

I will now turn to the specific recommendations in the Committee’s report. These responses
supplement the government response that was published in March

Recommendation 1: We recommend that the Welsh Government urgently examines the
likely parameters of various Brexit scenarios, including a ‘no deal scenario”, and reports on
progress within 6 months.

As stated in the Government response to the Committee’s report, it is important to stress
that it will not be possible to completely mitigate the impacts of a ho deal outcome on Wales,
and it is the responsibility of the UK Government to make the necessary arrangements in
many key areas.

However, as outlined above, as a responsible Government, we have been pressing UK
Government to develop a programme of work to prepare for a “no deal” scenario. As a result
of this pressure, UK Government has set up a UK — DA Forum, which convenes fortnightly to
ensure that all administrations have a shared understanding of readiness requirements and
preparations.

Within Welsh Government, a sub group of the European Transition Officials Group has been
established. This meets fortnightly to ensure a joined-up approach across Welsh
Government on overall operational readiness, to make sure we are ready for the practical
implications of leaving the EU. The European Transition Officials Group, informed with
expert advice from the European Advisory Group, works extensively on the many
parameters of Brexit and this work underpins the Welsh Government’s evidence based
approach as we seek to influence and prepare for exiting the EU.

The UK Government has recently published the first batch in a series of Technical Notices.
These notices outline the implications of a “no deal” exit on businesses, citizens and
consumers, and cover issues from customs and borders, to delivering humanitarian aid
programmes. More notices are planned over the coming months. Through this process,
there have been positive signs of UK Government improving efforts to work with Devolved
Administrations, but it is far from perfect. We have had to respond on detailed technical
issues within too short timeframes, which inevitably detracts from the overall effectiveness of
UK-wide preparations.

Pack Page 64



Recommendation 2: We recommend that the Welsh Government publish both the nine
sectoral analyses described by the Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure and
the outcome of the forthcoming research being undertaken by Cardiff Business School.

As outlined in the official response to the Committee report, our initial internal work led us to
commission wider research, which has overtaken the early analysis. For example, the report
“EU Transition and Economic Prospects for Large and Medium Sized Firms in Wales”,
commissioned by the Welsh Government and prepared by Cardiff Business School, which is
available on the Welsh Government website at:

https://gov.wales/topics/businessandeconomy/economic-action-plan/eu-transition-and-
economic-prospects-for-large-and-medium-sized-firms-in-wales/?lang=en

This report includes sectoral analyses and further policy work is currently being developed to
build on the initial research, looking in more detail at trade opportunities and threats for
Wales.

In addition to commissioned research and an ongoing programme of direct business
engagements, we are planning to utilise information already being provided to us by
businesses to provide insight into Brexit preparedness and potential responses.

We are also seeking to deepen our analysis on trade between Wales, the UK and the world.
There are currently no data on Wales’ exports to, and imports from, the other nations of the
UK and the extent to which Welsh businesses’ outputs to other parts of the UK ultimately
lead to exports from the UK as well as how Welsh businesses’ supply chains are dependent
— directly and indirectly —on imports from outside the UK. Specific consideration is being
given to funding work, utilising the EU Transition Fund, to develop more detailed trade data
for Wales. Further details of this work, if progressed, will be made available in due course.

Recommendation 3: We recommend that the Welsh Government improves communication
with individual organisations through greater encouragement of representative bodies to
cascade information to those organisations. We also recommend that individual
organisations undertake two-way engagement on the issue of Brexit within their own
structures.

Against the backdrop of stymied progress in the negotiations and the absence of clarity and
detail from the UK Government on the kind of Brexit they want, we have nevertheless
increased our engagement with stakeholders in a range of ways.

We use a range of structures to engage with organisations across Wales, covering the
private, public and third sectors, so we can have discussions on the potential impacts of
Brexit, get information on their experiences and work together to prepare for the many
practical implications of leaving the EU. Extensive engagement has continued through our
standing fora where stakeholder organisations are represented. These fora include the
Environment and Rural Affairs Roundtable Stakeholders Group, the Higher Education Brexit
Working Group, the EU Exit Working Group (a sub group of Council for Economic
Development) and the European Advisory Group, where we have recently expanded the
membership.

Pack Page 65


https://gov.wales/topics/businessandeconomy/economic-action-plan/eu-transition-and-economic-prospects-for-large-and-medium-sized-firms-in-wales/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/topics/businessandeconomy/economic-action-plan/eu-transition-and-economic-prospects-for-large-and-medium-sized-firms-in-wales/?lang=en

Direct departmental engagement with stakeholders supplements these set piece meetings,
allowing Brexit-related issues to be discussed; for example in relation to health at bi-monthly
meetings with the Royal College of Nursing, British Medical Association, and Trades Unions.

Cabinet Secretaries and Ministers have also increased Brexit stakeholder engagement in the
months since January, with a range of activity taking place across Wales. Examples include:

o the Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Transport held Brexit trade talks with North
Wales businesses, chaired the EU Exit Working Group, and spoke at the Wales
Export Conference of 2018 on the in Welsh Government’s proactive approach to
helping companies prepare for life after Brexit;

o the Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs has continued to chair
her Brexit Roundtable and also held a joint stakeholder event with the Secretary of
State for Wales;

o the Cabinet Secretary for Finance addressed two WLGA conferences, and spoke at
a NHS research and development conference in Newport and at a Children in Wales
event at the Eisteddfod; and

o the Minister for the Welsh Language and Lifelong Learning met representatives of
further education at Colegau Cymru Conference.

With increased speculation on a ‘no deal’ Brexit, the European Transition Team and
departmental officials have also engaged directly with a range of stakeholders — including
the Federation of Small Businesses Wales, Welsh Local Government Association, Welsh
NHS Confederation, and the Countryside Landowners Association - to discuss Brexit issues
and how we can work together to better inform their members on the implications of the
various potential forms of Brexit. These discussions will continue through to March 2019 and
beyond. We have also written to the Chairs of the Local Resilience Fora asking them to
consider civil contingencies action.

Recommendation 4: We recommend that the Welsh Government issues clear and
accessible guidance to businesses, public sector organisations, and the third sector on what
the implications of various Brexit scenarios, including a “no deal” scenario, could mean for
those organisations. This guidance should be issued as soon as practically possible after the
publication of this report.

We are no closer to knowing the form Brexit will take, meaning confusion and uncertainty
remain. We have produced detailed, evidence based policy proposals on how the right kind
of Brexit can protect jobs, and we have put forward proposals on trade, immigration, the
future of the UK and a range of other issues once we are out of the EU.

The Technical Notices, explained above, go some way to outlining the implications of a “no
deal’ exit on businesses, citizens and consumers. Where necessary, Welsh Government is
supplementing this information with direct communications to impacted sectors. For
example, the Deputy Chief Executive of the NHS wrote to health bodies following the release
of the first batch of notices. The Welsh European Funding Office (WEFO) is writing to all its
stakeholders following the publication of the notices on structural funds and other EU funded
programmes.

Pack Page 66



Policy areas have detailed discussions with their stakeholders. For example, within the
Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs portfolio, we have been working closely with stakeholders
to examine the possible threats and opportunities of Brexit, including publishing in February
2018 an EU Exit scenario report for the food, fisheries, farming, forestry and the environment
sectors. The report, developed with stakeholders, outlines the implications of five scenarios,
including defaulting to WTO terms, an EU-UK Free Trade Agreement and complete access
to the single market with new FTAs with third countries.

The Welsh Government is preparing to launch a new Brexit Portal in the autumn. This will
include a diagnostic tool to help business assess their level of preparedness for Brexit. We
are planning to use the data which is generated by businesses completing the diagnostic to
further strengthen our understanding of the level of business preparedness and where
Welsh Government intervention and support can add the greatest value.

Our support for stakeholders will continue, we will work closely with them as we consider
carefully the implications of developments in the negotiations, and how they will impact on
Wales.

Recommendation 5: We call upon the Welsh Government to seek clarity from the UK
Government on how the proposed Shared Prosperity Fund would be allocated and
administered.

As noted in the Government response to the Committee report, economic development is a
devolved competence and the possibility of a centrally-administered UK fund is not
compatible with the distinctive approaches to regional development adapted by the different
UK nations.

The Welsh Government continues to press UK Government to explain how the proposed UK
Shared Prosperity Fund is to operate, whilst ensuring that Wales’ devolved economic
development competence is respected and that Wales does not lose a penny as a result of
Brexit.

To date, no specific details of the proposal have been made available, though it is hoped
that a meeting between Welsh Government and UK Government officials in September will
mark the start of meaningful dialogue.

Recommendation 6: We recommend that the Welsh Government — in conjunction with the
Higher Education Working Group — publish any work that it has conducted to date in
reviewing its strategy in relation to research and innovation in the higher education sector to
take account of the implications of Brexit in this area.

The Reid Review was published by the Welsh Government on 6" June. Reid made three
recommendations: that the Welsh Government should increase the visibility and influence of
Welsh research by creating a new Welsh Research and Innovation London Office; that the
Welsh Government strengthens the Welsh research base and enables Welsh researchers to
attract a greater share of UK-wide funding by implementing Diamond’s recommendation for

Pack Page 67



guality related research funding and creating an additional Future of Wales Fund specifically
to incentivise Welsh researchers to win funding from outside Wales; and that the Welsh
Government increases the visibility, coherence and impact of research and innovation in
Wales by creating a single overarching brand for its innovation activities. The first
recommendation is being taken forward. The Welsh Government is considering still its
responses to Reid’s 2" and 3™ recommendations

Recommendation 7: We recommend that the Welsh Government set out in its response to
our report how it intends to spend the anticipated consequential allocations arising from
additional money being spent at UK level to prepare for Brexit and clarifies whether these
will be ring-fenced for supporting activities in relation to Brexit in Wales.

Through our £50m European Transition Fund we are providing direct financial support to
help stakeholders prepare for Brexit. This includes support to our agriculture and fisheries
industry sectors including £2.15 million for the development of the red meat sector in Wales,
a £150,000 to help deliver a Brexit support package to all 22 local authorities in Wales, a
£3.5m for a programme run by Wales’ universities to drive international partnerships and
promote Wales as a study destination in a post Brexit world and £200,000 to help the social
care sector in Wales for research into how the Brexit process could impact on the workforce
and to help the sector plan for any eventualities.

Since the UK voted to leave the EU on June 23 2016, the Welsh Government has been
doing everything possible to secure a smooth and successful Brexit for Wales. The approach
we have taken to managing this critical work included creating the European Transition
Team to give a strategic lead and coordinate the Welsh Government’s ‘Brexit position’,
focusing on Brexit policy, negotiations, preparedness and legislation. The team has worked
closely with policy and other teams across the organisation to support Ministers in protecting
and promoting the interests of Wales.

Brexit is generating large volumes of new work in areas such as legislative correction and
reform as well as demanding new capability in areas like rural policy and trade that will
enable us to function successfully in a post-Brexit world. So far, we have managed this
challenging work primarily through reprioritising resource internally, moving experienced staff
into dedicated Brexit roles. Additional staff have been recruited externally to work in Brexit
roles related to the environment and rural affairs, and a further phase of external recruitment
and internal redeployment will be starting this month.

Yours sincerely

CARWYN JONES

Pack Page 68



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 5

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 69



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 72



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 6

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 81



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 7

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 85



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 88



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 91



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 92



	Agenda
	2.1 Correspondence from Dr Richard Greville, Association of the British Pharmaceutical Industry regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit - health and medicines - 15 August 2018
	2.2 Correspondence from Adrian Greason-Walker, Wales Tourism Alliance regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit - ports - 30 August 2018
	2.3 Correspondence from Tina Donnelly, Royal College of Nursing Wales regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit - health and medicines - 31 August 2018
	Annex A - Royal College of Nursing

	2.4 Correspondence from Nesta Lloyd-Jones, Welsh NHS Confederation regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit - health and medicines - 3 September 2018
	Annex B - Welsh NHS Confederation

	2.5 Correspondence from Robin Smith, Rail Freight Group regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit - ports - 4 September 2018
	2.6 Correspondence from Anna Malloy, Port of Milford Haven regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit - ports - 7 September 2018
	2.7 Correspondence from Liam Anstey, BMA Cymru Wales regarding the follow-up inquiry into how the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit - health and medicines - 7 September 2018
	4 How is the Welsh Government preparing for Brexit? - consideration of the responses received
	Correspondence from the First Minister regarding the request for an update on progress with recommendations contained in the report on 'How the Welsh Government is preparing for Brexit?' - 10 September 2018

	5 Wales in the World: an inquiry into the Welsh Government’s approach to external affairs - rapporteur summary
	Wales in the World rapporteur summary

	6 Wales in the World: an inquiry into the Welsh Government’s approach to external affairs - consideration of draft letter
	7 Forward work programme
	Paper on the Committee’s strategic approach
	Forward work programme
	Paper on the Committee’s workstreams


